			Technical Re	eport Documentation Page
1. Report No. FHWA/TX-09/0-5475-2	2. Government Accessio	n No.	3. Recipient's Catalog No.	0.
4. Title and Subtitle UTILITY ACCOMMODATION AND CONFLICT T (UACT) INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION		RACKER MANUAL	5. Report Date October 2008 Published: Februa	ary 2009
			0. Terrorning Organizati	
7. Author(s) Edgar Kraus, Jerry Le, and Hussam	Dawood		8. Performing Organizati Report 0-5475-2	ion Report No.
9. Performing Organization Name and Address Texas Transportation Institute			10. Work Unit No. (TRA	IS)
The Texas A&M University System College Station, Texas 77843-3135	l		11. Contract or Grant No. Project 0-5475	
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address Texas Department of Transportation Research and Technology Implement	n ntation Office		13. Type of Report and P Technical Report September 2005 -	eriod Covered : - August 2008
P.O. Box 5080 Austin, Texas 78763-5080			14. Sponsoring Agency C	Code
 15. Supplementary Notes Project performed in cooperation with the Texas Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration. Project Title: Collection, Integration and Analysis of Utility Data in the Transportation Project Development Process URL: http://tti tamu edu/documents/0-5475-2 pdf 				
16. Abstract Project 0-5475 performed a comprehensive analysis of utility conflict data/information flows between utility accommodation stakeholders in the Texas Department of Transportation project development process, developed data models to accommodate work and data flows between such stakeholders, developed a prototype system for the management of utility conflict data, and developed a tool for the visualization and analysis of utility conflicts within the prototype. This report provides a description of the required steps to install and configure the prototype system for the management of utility conflict data called Utility Accommodation and Conflict Tracker, or UACT. The report details the application's architecture and system requirements, and provides guidance for the installation and configuration of all software components, including the Geographic Information System (GIS) mapping component and Oracle database. The report also details the activities required to populate the Oracle tablespaces after configuration is complete.				
17. Key Words18. Distribution StatementUtility Conflict, Utility Conflict Resolution, Utility Accommodation, Utility Relocation, Utility Reimbursement, Utility Adjustment, Utility Coordination, Utility Management, Utility Data Management, Utility Tracking18. Distribution Statement18. Distribution StatementNo restrictions. This document is available to the public through NTIS: National Technical Information Service Springfield, Virginia 22161 http://www.ntis.gov		vailable to the vice		
19. Security Classif.(of this report) 20. Security Classif.(of this page) 21. No. of Pages 2 Unclassified Unclassified 128		22. Price		

UTILITY ACCOMMODATION AND CONFLICT TRACKER (UACT) INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION MANUAL

by

Edgar Kraus, P.E. Assistant Research Engineer Texas Transportation Institute

Jerry Le Software Applications Developer Texas Transportation Institute

and

Hussam Dawood Student Worker Texas Transportation Institute

Report 0-5475-2 Project 0-5475 Project Title: Collection, Integration, and Analysis of Utility Data in the Transportation Project Development Process

Performed in cooperation with the Texas Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration

> October 2008 Published: February 2009

TEXAS TRANSPORTATION INSTITUTE The Texas A&M University System College Station, Texas 77843-3135

DISCLAIMER

The contents of this document reflect the views of the authors, who are responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the data presented herein. The contents do not necessarily reflect the official view or policies of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) or the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT). This document does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation, nor is it intended for construction, bidding, or permit purposes. The engineer in charge of the project was Edgar Kraus, P.E. (Texas Registration #96727).

The United States Government and the State of Texas do not endorse products or manufacturers. Trade or manufacturers' names appear herein solely because they are considered essential to the object of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This research was conducted in cooperation with TxDOT and FHWA. The researchers gratefully acknowledge the assistance provided by TxDOT officials, in particular the following:

- Randall "Randy" Anderson (Project Director)
- John Campbell, Right of Way Division (Program Coordinator)
- Jesse Cooper, Right of Way Division
- Karen Van Hooser, Technology Services Division
- Jim Kuhn, Technology Services Division
- Sylvia Medina, Research and Technology Implementation Office
- Gary Ray, Houston District
- Duncan Stewart, Research and Technology Implementation Office
- Tom Yarbrough, Research and Technology Implementation Office

The researchers also acknowledge the assistance provided by Cesar Quiroga and Nick Koncz of the Texas Transportation Institute in completing this manual.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF FIGURES	ix
LIST OF TABLES	xiii
LIST OF ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND TERMS	xiv
CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION	1
SYSTEM OVERVIEW	1
CHAPTER 2. UACT SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	3
SYSTEM ARCHITECTURE	3
SPACE REQUIREMENTS	5
Client Side Space Requirements	5
Server Side Space Requirements	5
Secondary Storage Requirements	6
MAPPING COMPONENT REQUIREMENTS	7
RETENTION REQUIREMENTS	
CHAPTER 3. COMPLETE SOFTWARE COMPONENT INSTALLATION AND	
CONFIGURATION	11
INTRODUCTION	11
Names Used in UACT	
FOLDER STRUCTURE AND DATA COPYING	
MICROSOFT IIS INSTALLATION AND INITIAL CONFIGURATION	14
MICROSOFT OFFICE INSTALLATION	
ORACLE CLIENT INSTALLATION	
CIMMETRY AUTOVUE 2D DESKTOP INSTALLATION	
MICROSOFT .NET 2.0 FRAMEWORK INSTALLATION	
ADLIB EXPRESS SERVER INSTALLATION	
ESRI ARCGIS SERVER V9.2 INSTALLATION	61
UACT MAPPING COMPONENT CONFIGURATION	
Create A New ArcGIS Server Administrator	
Create a New Map Service	65
Create A New Map Application	73
MICROSOFT IIS FINAL CONFIGURATION	82

ESRI ARCSDE CONFIGURATION	90
Create a New ArcSDE Database Connection	91
Importing the Utility Conflict Outline Feature Class into ArcSDE	93
CHAPTER 4. COPYING DATA AND VERIFICATION OF UACT SETUP	97
INTRODUCTION	97
CONFIGURATION OF THE ORACLE DATABASE	97
Create a Tablespace for UACT on the Oracle Server	98
COPYING UACT DATA TO THE ORACLE DATABASE	105
CHAPTER 5. UACT INSTALLATION TESTING AND PERFORMANCE	109
UACT INSTALLATION TESTING	109
REFERENCES	111

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. System Architecture	3
Figure 2. UACT Folder Structure	13
Figure 3. IIS Manger Default Web Site	15
Figure 4. Virtual Directory Creation Wizard Virtual Directory Alias Window	16
Figure 5. Virtual Directory Creation Wizard Web Site Content Directory Window	17
Figure 6. Virtual Directory Creation Wizard Access Permissions Window	18
Figure 7. Oracle Client File Locations Window	19
Figure 8. Oracle Client Installation Types Window	20
Figure 9. Oracle Client Installation Summary Window	21
Figure 10. Oracle Client Configuration Tools Window	22
Figure 11. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Welcome Window	23
Figure 12. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Database Version Selection Window	23
Figure 13. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Service Name Window	24
Figure 14. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Network Protocol Window	24
Figure 15. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Host Name and Port Number Window	25
Figure 16. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Connection Test Window	26
Figure 17. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Net Service Name Window	27
Figure 18. AutoVue Pen Settings Window	28
Figure 19. AutoVue Customized Pen Settings Window	29
Figure 20. Express Server Window	31
Figure 21. Services Console Window Showing the Adlib Express Server Service	32
Figure 22. Application Settings Window	33
Figure 23. Express Server Folder Options Window	34
Figure 24. Log Settings Window	35
Figure 25. Express Server Processing Settings Window	36
Figure 26. Express Server Outputs Settings Window	37
Figure 27. Convert to PDF Settings Window	38
Figure 28. Convert to PDF Information Settings Window	39

Figure 29.	Express Server PDF Options Settings Window	. 40
Figure 30.	PDF Compression Options Window	. 41
Figure 31.	Bookmarks, Hyperlinks, and Table of Contents Settings Window	. 42
Figure 32.	Font Embedding Options Window	. 42
Figure 33.	PDF Security Settings Window	. 43
Figure 34.	Transformation Settings Window	. 44
Figure 35.	PDF Open Settings Window	. 45
Figure 36.	Express Server Document Options Window	. 45
Figure 37.	Computer Aided Design Settings Window	. 46
Figure 38.	HTML Settings Window	. 47
Figure 39.	Text Settings Window	. 48
Figure 40.	Express Server Main Interface Window	. 49
Figure 41.	Install Adlib Service Window	. 50
Figure 42.	Adlib Express Server Service Properties Window	. 51
Figure 43.	Log On Tab of the Adlib Express Server Properties Window	. 52
Figure 44.	Adlib FMR Properties Window	. 53
Figure 45.	DCOM Config Folder in the Component Services Window	. 54
Figure 46.	AdConv.AdConvNS Properties Window	. 55
Figure 47.	Launch Permission Window	. 56
Figure 48.	Access Permission Window	. 57
Figure 49.	System Properties Window	. 58
Figure 50.	Performance Options: Data Execution Prevention Setting Tab	. 59
Figure 51.	Services Console	. 60
Figure 52.	General Tab of the Adlib Express Server Properties Window	. 61
Figure 53.	GIS Administrators Properties Window	. 63
Figure 54.	Server Administrators Properties Window	. 64
Figure 55.	ArcGIS Server Manager Login Page	. 65
Figure 56.	ArcGIS Server Manager, Services Tab	. 66
Figure 57.	ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 1	. 67
Figure 58.	ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 2	. 68
Figure 59.	ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 3	. 69

Figure 60. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 4	70
Figure 61. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 5	71
Figure 62. ArcGIS Server Manager: Start New UACT Map Service	72
Figure 63. ArcGIS Server Manager, Applications Tab	73
Figure 64. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Specify Name and Hos	st 74
Figure 65. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Select Map Service	75
Figure 66. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Select Tasks	76
Figure 67. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Configure General	
Preferences of Task	77
Figure 68. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Configure Settings	
Preferences of Task	78
Figure 69. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Verify Local Connection	on
User Name	79
Figure 70. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Set Page Properties	80
Figure 71. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Overview Map Setting	S
Window	81
Figure 72. UACT Properties Window	82
Figure 73. UACT Properties Window: Virtual Directory Tab	83
Figure 74. Application Configuration Window: Options Tab	84
Figure 75. UACT Properties Window: HTTP Headers Tab	85
Figure 76. MIME Types Window	86
Figure 77. New MIME Type Window	86
Figure 78. MIME Types Window: New MIME Type	87
Figure 79. IIS Manager Window: Web Service Extensions	88
Figure 80. UACT-UserFiles Folder: Properties Window	89
Figure 81. UACT-UserFiles Folder: Security Tab	90
Figure 82. ArcCatalog, Database Connections Window	91
Figure 83. Spatial Database Connection Window	92
Figure 84. New Database Connection in Database Connection Window	93
Figure 85. Feature Class to Feature Class Window	94
Figure 86. Feature Class to Feature Class Window, Output Feature Class	95

Figure 87.	Feature Class to Feature Class Dialog Box	95
Figure 88.	New Feature Class in Database Connection Window	96
Figure 89.	Oracle Enterprise Manager Screen: Administration Tab	98
Figure 90.	Oracle Create Tablespace Window	99
Figure 91.	Oracle Enterprise Manager: Add Datafile to Tablespace	100
Figure 92.	Oracle Create Tablespace Window with New Tablespace	101
Figure 93.	Oracle Administration Window	102
Figure 94.	Oracle Create User Window	103
Figure 95.	Oracle Modify Roles Window	104
Figure 96.	Command for Importing Dump File Uactdev_Owner	106
Figure 97.	Command for Importing Dump File Uactdev_User	106
Figure 98.	Command for Importing Dump File FileNet_User	107

LIST OF TABLES

Page

Table 1.	UACT Tablespace Size Requirements	105

LIST OF ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND TERMS

ArcSDE	Arc Spatial Data Engine
ASP	Active Server Pages
CAD	Computer Aided Design
CCITT	International Telegraph and Telephone Consultative Committee
CSV	Comma Separated Values
DCIS	Design and Construction Information System
DCOM	Distributed Component Object Model
DEP	Data Execution Prevention
DOT	Department of Transportation
DPI	Document Processing Information
DVD	Digital Versatile Disk
ESRI	Environmental Systems Research Institute
FileNet	FileNet Electronic Document Management System
FHWA	Federal Highway Administration
FMR	Fault Monitoring and Recovery
GAIP	GIS Architecture Infrastructure Project
GIS	Geographic Information Systems
HPGL	Hewlett-Packard Graphics Language
HTML	HyperText Markup Language
HTTP	HyperText Transfer Protocol
IIS	Internet Information Services
IP	Internet Protocol

ISO	International Organization for Standardization	
MainStreet	MainStreet Texas Information System	
MIME	Multipurpose Internet Mail Extensions	
ODBC	Open Database Connectivity	
PDF	Portable Document Format	
ROW	Right of Way	
ROWIS	Right of Way Information System	
SP	Service Pack	
TNRIS	Texas Natural Resource Information System	
TSD	Technology Services Division at TxDOT	
TTI	Texas Transportation Institute	
TxDOT	Texas Department of Transportation	
UACT	Utility Accommodation and Conflict Tracker	
UFD	Utility Facility Database	
UIR	Utility Installation Review	
XML	Extensible Markup Language	

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

SYSTEM OVERVIEW

The Utility Accommodation and Conflict Tracker (UACT) system is a web-based prototype for the management and tracking of utility conflicts. Key functionalities of UACT include:

- Utility Conflict Tracking. Department of Transportation (DOT) officials can enter utility conflict data based on existing utility facility data and create visual representations of utility conflicts using a mapping component. The prototype also provides an overview of the status of utility conflicts for each project.
- Utility Agreement Development and Tracking. A utility company can complete the required forms of a utility agreement online and file the document electronically for review by the appropriate district and division personnel. The system guides the user through the completion process and selects appropriate forms based on the specific circumstances of the utility conflict.
- **Document Upload and Conversion to portable document format (PDF).** The prototype allows users to upload documents that are accessible to other users based on roles and privileges. The prototype converts all documents automatically to PDF to allow easy access to all privileged users.
- **Design and Construction Information System (DCIS) Project Data Access**. The researchers designed the prototype to connect to DCIS and display project data that are collected in a DCIS data warehouse.
- Utility Facility Database Access. The researchers designed the prototype to integrate with a Geographic Information System (GIS) based database of utility facility features.
- **Sophisticated User Access Model**. UACT provides a sophisticated and flexible access system based on capabilities, roles, and privileges. UACT administrators can further customize access to UACT by providing individual users access to specific projects.

This manual describes the process to install and configure UACT. The document is divided into chapters as follows:

- Chapter 1 is this introductory chapter.
- Chapter 2 describes UACT system requirements.
- Chapter 3 describes the steps to install and configure required and recommended UACT software components.

- Chapter 4 describes the steps to copy data to a tablespace in Oracle and verify UACT is working properly.
- Chapter 5 describes procedures to test and verify the correct installation of all UACT system components.

CHAPTER 2. UACT SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

SYSTEM ARCHITECTURE

UACT is a system that consists of several components that researchers designed to manage utility conflict data using web-based access. As Figure 1 shows, UACT has two main groups of components: client-side components and server side components.



Figure 1. System Architecture.

On the client side, a web browser serves as a front-end interface that allows users on client computers to interact with the UACT system to complete the utility adjustment process. Both

utility company users and TxDOT users can act as clients, but their interfaces are different and have different access levels. To access UACT, users must have a computer that meets the following minimum system requirements:

- desktop or laptop computer running Windows[®] XP with Service Pack 2 (SP2),
- Microsoft[®] Internet Explorer[®] 6.0 with SP2 or higher,
- portable document format (PDF) reader such as Adobe[®] Acrobat Reader[®] 7.0,
- internet connection,
- email account, and
- UACT active account.

On the server side, UACT includes a number of system components, including the following:

- Web server. Microsoft Internet Information Services[®] (IIS) 6.0 running on Windows Server 2003[®].
- **Map server**. Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI[®]) Arc Geographical Information System Server[™] (ArcGIS[™] Server) Version 9.2.
- **Spatial data engine.** ArcGIS Server can be configured to access spatial data in formats such as ESRI shape file format, personal geodatabases (.mdb file format), or geodatabases using ESRI's Arc Spatial Data Engine[®] (ArcSDE[®]).
- **File upload component**. UACT currently uses a file upload component of ASP.NETTM. UACT could use another upload component such as SoftArtisans[®] FileUpTM.
- **PDF generator**. Adlib Software[®] Adlib Express Server[®] with Compressor Add-On. This standalone server application monitors the contents of a specific input folder at regular time intervals. In UACT, the application checks the contents of a designated input folder every five seconds. If Adlib Express Server detects a new file in that folder (typically if a utility company or TxDOT user has uploaded a file to the server), Adlib Express Server generates a PDF file and stores that file in a designated output folder. In order for Adlib Express Server to convert a file to PDF, an application that can open the file must be installed on the server.
- **Microsoft Office**[®] (Word[®], Excel[®], PowerPoint[®], and Visio[®]). Adlib Express Server supports a number of native applications installed on the server, including Microsoft Office. In the current TTI implementation, UACT recognizes Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Visio files, allowing Adlib Express Server to generate PDF versions of Word (.doc) files, Excel (.xls) files, PowerPoint (.ppt) files, and Visio (.vsd) files.
- Additional PDF file generation support. Cimmetry[®] AutoVue[®] 2D Desktop (now Oracle[®] AutoVue) enables Adlib Express Server to generate PDF versions of additional file types, in particular MicroStation[®] (.dgn) and AutoCAD[®] (.dwg).

- **Microsoft .NETTM 2.0 framework**. An integral Windows component required to run applications developed with .NET technology. The version used for the implementation of UACT is 2.0.
- **Oracle Client.** In order for the IIS web server to communicate with the Oracle database server and retrieve data, it requires a data provider that supports Oracle. The UACT implementation at TTI uses the .NET Managed Provider for Oracle from Microsoft, which is part of the .NET 2.0 framework.

As Figure 1 shows, the UACT implementation uses two server side environments: a database server (that includes Oracle and ArcSDE) and a web server (that includes all other components in addition to the UACT code). The web server also stores all files uploaded to the system as well as data files UACT generates during the utility adjustment process. A UACT implementation at TxDOT will likely involve separate mapping and data storage servers. In addition, TxDOT would connect UACT to an existing email server to allow for system-generated email notifications.

SPACE REQUIREMENTS

Client Side Space Requirements

On client computers, requirements are minimal. Other than the applications listed previously (i.e., an internet browser, PDF viewer, and an email client), users do not need to install additional components. During the submission of utility agreement applications to TxDOT, users need to have access to files they need to upload to the server. Currently, there is no limit on the number of files or file size a user can upload to UACT. In an implementation of the prototype, TxDOT should consider a suitable limit for both file size and number. For example, the limit on the file size a user can upload could be stored as a parameter in a configuration file to facilitate modifications and fine-tuning of the maximum file size on an as-needed basis. The following sections describe requirements on the server side.

Server Side Space Requirements

On the server side, the prototype consists of two servers: a database server, and a web server. The database server uses an implementation of Oracle 10g that consists of several tablespaces. For each tablespace, the researchers created a database schema for the creation of tables, relationships, and indexes. UACT consists of the following tablespaces:

- **UACT**. This tablespace includes the tables of the subject areas Feature, Utility Conflict, Utility Agreement Assembly, Permissions, Project, Document, Meeting, User, and System.
- **DCIS**. This tablespace includes the DCIS Subject Area table.

- **UFD**. This tablespace includes the tables of the UFD (Utility Facility Database) Subject Area.
- **SDE**. This tablespace includes the tables of the ArcSDE Subject Area. Note that the researchers implemented some of the tables of the subtype GAIP (GIS Architecture Infrastructure Project) Feature, including Asset Features and Geopolitical Features as ESRI ArcSDE tables in the SDE Oracle tablespace.

These tablespaces provide the core functionality of the UACT system. During development, the research team created two copies of the UACT tablespace to test changes to the prototype while keeping one version ready for user testing at all times. In addition, the researchers created four additional tablespaces to represent existing/external systems during prototype development. The purpose of the additional tablespaces was to test the ability of the UACT prototype to connect to these systems. During implementation, existing TxDOT systems would replace the following tablespaces:

- **FileNet**. This tablespace includes the tables of the FileNet Subject Area.
- MainStreet. This tablespace includes the tables of the MainStreet Texas Subject Area.
- **ROWIS**. This tablespace includes the tables of the ROWIS (Right of Way Information System) Subject Area.
- **UIRPRO**. This tablespace includes the tables of the UIR (Utility Installation Review) Subject Area.

The TTI implementation allocates 100 megabytes for the UACT tablespace. The space actually occupied in the tablespace is currently about 20 megabytes. However, it is possible that a UACT implementation will need additional indexes to increase database query performance, which would require additional space in Oracle.

During prototype development, the TTI implementation allocated 20-30 megabytes each for the tablespaces DCIS, UFD, and SDE. This space requirement was sufficient during database testing. In a production version, these tablespaces may require additional space in Oracle. For more information, please refer to the Oracle configuration section in chapter 4.

Secondary Storage Requirements

In addition to the Oracle database space, UACT requires a secondary storage mainly for files that users upload and PDF conversion of those files. Based on a sample of utility agreement applications submitted during preliminary testing, the approximate file space requirements for secondary storage per utility agreement including file attachments are as follows:

Minimum: 5 megabytes Maximum: 50 megabytes Average: 25 megabytes As a conservative estimate, a utility agreement application could require about 25-50 megabytes of space. For a total of 250 utility agreements per year throughout the state, the total annual secondary storage requirement would be between 6.3 and 12.5 gigabytes of space per year. Although the researchers assume that utility agreements will have the greatest storage requirements, there are additional files that users can upload through UACT. At this point, the researchers estimate an annual secondary storage requirement of no greater than 15 gigabytes.

MAPPING COMPONENT REQUIREMENTS

The mapping component has the following two main functions:

- display geographic data of a project and utility features to help locate utility conflicts, and
- allow users to outline utility conflicts using an interactive tool and associate the utility conflict outline with the utility conflict.

The current implementation of the mapping component includes a number of GIS data layers, which the researchers grouped into the following essential and recommended data layers:

- **Essential GIS data layers.** UACT must have the following data layers in order to function properly:
 - Alignments (source: project 0-5475 (1)),
 - Utility Features (source: project 5-2110-01 (2)),
 - Right of way features (source: project 0-5475 (1)), and
 - City Street Layer (source: ESRI) or TxDOT Route Layer (source: TxDOT Technology Services Division (TSD)).
- **Recommended data layers**. These layers are not critical but would be useful to UACT users. This includes mainly TxDOT data layers in the format of ESRI shape file, personal geodatabase, or ArcSDE format such as:
 - TxDOT County Layer (source: TxDOT TSD),
 - TxDOT Control Section 2005 (source: TxDOT TSD),
 - TxDOT District Layer (source: TxDOT TSD),
 - TxDOT Route Marker (source: TxDOT TSD),
 - TxDOT Route Layer (source: TxDOT TSD),
 - City Street Layer (source: ESRI), and
 - Aerial photography (source for current implementation: TxDOT Houston District, stored in MrSid format).

In ESRI shape format, the vector layers (routes, control sections, and so on) require about 500 megabytes of space. UACT uses the county layer in combination with the aerial photography as a convenient tool to help UACT users visually find the location of a utility conflict. However, UACT does not read any data from these layers.

In the case of the Houston aerial photography layer, the spatial resolution is 6 inches. This layer provides aerial photography for a section of IH-10 that covers the extent of the Katy Freeway Project. Users have found that layer very useful because of the quality of information that high-resolution aerial photography can provide. By comparison, one-meter resolution aerial photography – which is available through the Texas Natural Resource Information System (TNRIS) – does not provide adequate resolution to identify features on the ground and is now more than 10 years old. The aerial photography files take up about 210 megabytes of space. For an implementation, it would be advisable to include aerial photography for the entire implementation district, which may require additional storage space. For example, background imagery for Bexar County in San Antonio that the researchers used for a different project at similar resolution ranged between 10 and 25 gigabytes.

It is not critical to have aerial photography as a layer on the UACT mapping component because UACT does not read data from aerial photography. If no aerial photography is available, the implementation should provide a street network layer to help locate utility facilities. Any city street layer TxDOT may already have would be adequate, e.g., the TNRIS StratMap transportation data layer (Phase II), which TNRIS published in December 2006. This dataset is currently available at the county level.

If aerial photography is available, it can be quite useful. In the long term, it is possible the entire state will have high-resolution aerial photography. In the short term, high-resolution aerial photography is only available at certain locations, primarily major urban areas. Conversations with district officials suggest the level of availability of high-resolution aerial photography is increasing, but it is not clear what the current trend is. A preliminary estimate based on the file size associated with the 6-inch aerial photography dataset for Bexar County suggests the entire state could require some 2.2 - 2.4 terabytes of space. In either case, the UACT prototype is prepared to accommodate and display any georeferenced aerial photography data that will become available over the next years.

RETENTION REQUIREMENTS

Currently, TxDOT keeps paper copies of utility agreement assemblies for a certain period of time, at which point the joint-use acknowledgement attachment is detached and moved to a permanent file. The joint-use acknowledgement serves as a means to provide supporting documentation for the (lack of) property interest by utility companies on the land they occupy within the state right of way. Similarly, a joint-use acknowledgement can be used to document the right of TxDOT facilities to occupy a property interest held by a utility company, including fee and easements. The researchers designed the prototype to facilitate and standardize the creation of utility agreement assemblies for reimbursable utility adjustments. However, the prototype does not include a function to sign the agreement digitally, which would be an option for the implementation version. During discussion with TxDOT officials, there was a consensus to start using UACT as a means to facilitate approval of utility agreement assemblies by providing a preview of the documentation to districts and the Right of Way (ROW) Division. As such, TxDOT would lock the assembly for editing by the utility company until a district or the ROW Division has reviewed the assembly. If district and ROW Division approved the assembly, it would be unlocked for printing only and the utility company could print, sign, and

then send the assembly to TxDOT for official approval. If both TxDOT and utility companies agree, a digital signature on the utility agreement assembly could replace the need for printing and sending the signed paper copies to TxDOT. Thus, until the prototype implements digital signatures, retention requirements would not apply to UACT.

The current UACT implementation at TTI does not make a distinction between active utility agreement applications and archived utility agreement applications in terms of database record or associated file locations. The only difference between active and archived agreements is a status value in the database that changes from "active" to "completed" whenever the agreement has completed the entire application process. The system uses the distinction between active and archived utility agreements for the purpose of generating lists, running queries, and generating reports.

CHAPTER 3. COMPLETE SOFTWARE COMPONENT INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION

INTRODUCTION

This chapter describes the steps to install and configure all software components UACT needs, assuming a new and complete installation process; i.e., no software components were previously installed on the web server. If some of the software components have been previously installed, it may be necessary to adjust the installation and configuration procedure accordingly. However, the instructions assume the configuration and installation of an Oracle database management system version 10g release 2. In addition, the instructions assume that ESRI ArcSDE version 9.2 has been installed on the database server.

Unless otherwise indicated, this chapter assumes the following sequence for installing and configuring software components:

- 1. Folder structure creation and data copying.
- 2. Microsoft Internet Information Services (IIS) installation.
- 3. Microsoft Office installation.
- 4. Oracle 9i client installation.
- 5. Cimmetry AutoVue 2D Desktop Edition v19.2c2 installation.
- 6. Microsoft .NET 2.0 framework installation.
- 7. Adlib Express Server 3.8.2 installation.
- 8. ESRI ArcGIS Server v9.2 installation.
- 9. UACT mapping component configuration.
- 10. Microsoft IIS final configuration.
- 11. ESRI ArcSDE configuration.

The software versions listed above are those used for developing and testing UACT. Installation and configuration steps might vary if using newer software versions. TxDOT should review the corresponding instructions even if a software component is already installed on the TxDOT web server, because UACT may require a need for changes in the software component's configuration settings.

Names Used in UACT

Throughout the application, the system uses specific names to designate elements such as services, which are necessary for proper communication among components. The system uses the following names:

- **Website**. UACT is the web site name as well as the name of the physical folder that stores the UACT source code.
- **ArcGIS Server**. UACT_MapService is the name of the service used by ArcGIS Server, and UACT_MapApp is the name of the application used by ArcGIS Server.
- **Oracle**. UACT is the name of the Oracle tablespace, and UACT_USER is the username of the account that UACT uses to access the Oracle database (see Configuration of the Oracle Database in chapter 4).

FOLDER STRUCTURE AND DATA COPYING

This manual assumes the letter prefix "D:\" represents the drive on the web server that serves as the repository for UACT folders. Make the corresponding changes in the following instructions if the letter prefix for the installation drive is different. The current UACT implementation uses the following folder structure on the web server to store UACT files (Figure 2):

- **Data**. This folder contains the Oracle export files that include database schemas with most database objects such as tables, views, functions, synonyms, and data. UACT will need these files during configuration of the Oracle database (see chapter 4).
- **FILE_UPLOAD**. Adlib Express uses this folder to convert uploaded UACT documents to PDF.
- **Software**. This folder contains several subfolders with installation files for software components that need to be installed separately.
- UACT. This is the main folder, which includes many subfolders containing all UACT related code and data (except GIS data). GIS is a subfolder that contains all GIS vector data.
- Website. This folder contains a subfolder called UACT_MapApp, which contains the code of the GIS map application used by UACT.



Figure 2. UACT Folder Structure.

Use the following procedure to copy the UACT source code and current UACT user files to the web server:

- 1. Copy the *UACT* folder (contains the UACT system code) from the UACT Digital Versatile Disk (DVD) to the *D*: drive on the web server.
- 2. Unzip all the zipped files in the UACT folder, and place the result in folder $D:\setminus UACT$.
- 3. Edit file "SystemParam.cs" (located at *D:\UACT\App_Code\Library*) as follows:
 - o replace

_appUrl = "http://impdev.tamu.edu/UACT"

with TxDOT's web address of the UACT system:

```
_appUrl = "http://<TxDOT web address of the UACT system>/UACT/"
```

o replace

```
dbConnectionString = "Data Source=ORAGIM;UID=UACT_USER;PWD=456789;"
```

with TxDOT's connection string; and

- search for D:\ in the file and replace with the actual installation drive letter where the UACT system will be installed if other than D:\.
- 4. Copy the *FILE_UPLOAD* folder from the UACT DVD to the *D*: drive on the web server.
- 5. Create a *Website* folder on the *D*: drive on the web server.

MICROSOFT IIS INSTALLATION AND INITIAL CONFIGURATION

This section summarizes the steps to install Microsoft IIS and to create a web site for UACT. Use the following procedure to install Microsoft IIS:

- 1. Under *Start > Control Panel > Add/Remove Programs*, click "Add/Remove Windows Components."
- 2. Select Internet Information Services and proceed with the installation process.
- 3. Open the IIS Manager to verify the IIS installation (Figure 3):
- 4. In the left panel, navigate the folder tree under the machine name to find "Web Sites." The web server host listed should be "Default Web Site."
- 5. Open Internet Explorer and enter "http://<machine name>" (where <machine name> is the server name). The browser should return either an "Under Construction" page or a "Microsoft IIS Help" page.

🐚 Internet Information Services (IIS) N	1anager		_ 🗆 🗙
🐚 File Action <u>V</u> iew <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp			_ 8 ×
← → 🗈 🔃 🗙 😭 🔂 😫	2 🖳 🕨 ■ 🗉		
Internet Information Services Internet Information Services Internet Information Services Internet Information Service Internet Information Service </td <td>Name aspnet_client iisstart.htm pagerror.gif</td> <td>Path</td> <td>Status</td>	Name aspnet_client iisstart.htm pagerror.gif	Path	Status

Figure 3. IIS Manger Default Web Site.

The next step is to create a new web site for UACT on the web server. If the web server is a dedicated server to host UACT, there is no need to create a new web site for UACT. It is only necessary to rename the default web site as "UACT." Note: The name of the UACT web site is "UACT." As discussed later in the chapter, the physical address of the UACT folder on the web server is also "UACT." For the configuration of this web site, see section IIS Final Configuration toward the end of this chapter.

If the web server is a dedicated server to host UACT, use the following procedure to rename the IIS default web site:

- In IIS Manager, navigate the folder tree under the machine name to find "Web Sites."
- Right-click "Default Web Site" and rename the web site as "UACT."

If the web server will host multiple web sites sharing the same Internet Protocol (IP) address, it is necessary to create a virtual directory within IIS to host UACT. Use the following procedure to create this virtual directory:

• In IIS Manager, navigate the folder tree under the machine name to find "Web Sites."

• Right-click "Default Web Site" and select *New > Virtual Directory*. The Virtual Directory Creation wizard starts. In the Virtual Directory Alias window, type "UACT" and click "Next" (Figure 4).

Virtual Directory Creation Wizard
Virtual Directory Alias Specify a short name, or alias, for this virtual directory.
Type the alias you want to use to gain access to this Web virtual directory. Use the same naming conventions that you would for naming a directory.
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

Figure 4. Virtual Directory Creation Wizard Virtual Directory Alias Window.

• In the Web Site Content Directory window, enter the path or browse to the *D*:*UACT* folder (Figure 5) and Click "Next."

Virtual Directory Creation Wizard	×
Web Site Content Directory Where is the content you want to publish on the Web site?	
Enter the path to the directory that contains the content for this Web sit Path:	e.
	Browse
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >	Cancel

Figure 5. Virtual Directory Creation Wizard Web Site Content Directory Window.

• In the Virtual Directory Access Permissions window, select the *Read* option (Figure 6). Click "Next" to complete the virtual folder creation wizard.

Virtual Directory Creation Wizard 🛛 🛛 🗙
Virtual Directory Access Permissions Set the access permissions for this virtual directory.
Allow the following permissions:
☑ Bead
Run <u>s</u> cripts (such as ASP)
Execute (such as ISAPI applications or CGI)
☐ <u>W</u> rite
E Browse
To complete the wizard, click Next .
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

Figure 6. Virtual Directory Creation Wizard Access Permissions Window.

MICROSOFT OFFICE INSTALLATION

Microsoft Office must be installed on the web server to allow conversion of Microsoft Office documents to PDF using Adlib Express Server 3.8.2. For simplicity, this section does not include instructions for installing Microsoft Office under the assumption that TxDOT has standardized procedures for installing and configuring Office applications. A standard installation of the software is sufficient. At the very least, install Word, Excel, PowerPoint, and Visio.

ORACLE CLIENT INSTALLATION

UACT uses open database connectivity (ODBC) to communicate with the Oracle database. This process requires the installation of Oracle Client on the web server (unless Oracle is installed on the same machine as the web server). For more information, refer to the following references:

- Oracle 9i Client Installation Guide (3) and
- Oracle Enterprise Manager Configuration Guide (4).

This section assumes the following parameters associated with a hypothetical Oracle database (change parameters according to the actual Oracle database implementation used):

Service name:	SNHYP
Host name:	HYP-ORACLE
Net service name:	SNHYP
Protocol type:	Transmission Control Protocol (TCP)
Port type:	1521

It is necessary to install a version of Oracle Client that is compatible with the version of Oracle installed on the server. The UACT implementation at TTI uses an Oracle 10g Release 2 (10.2.0.1.0) database. The version of Oracle Client installed at TTI was 9i, which is compatible with Microsoft .NET framework 2.0 and the Oracle 10g database. Use the following procedure to install Oracle 9i Client on the web server:

• Insert the Oracle 9i client CD and run the installation setup.exe file. When you get to the File Locations screen, create/select an appropriate Oracle Home name and folder path and click "Next" (Figure 7). Hint: Use the default name and path.



Figure 7. Oracle Client File Locations Window.

• On the Installation Types screen, select *Runtime* and click "Next" (Figure 8).

🐱 Oracle Universal Installer: Installation Types 📃 🗖 🔀
Installation Types
Oracle9i Client 9.0.1.1.1
What type of installation do you want?
C Administrator (647MB)
Installs the management console, management tools, networking services, utilities, basic client software.
Runtime (486MB)
Installs tools for developing applications, networking services and basic client software.
C Custom
Enables you to choose individual components to install.
Product Languages
Exit Help Installed Products Previous Next
ORACLE' SOFTWARE POWERS THE INTERNET

Figure 8. Oracle Client Installation Types Window.
• The Summary screen lists the components to install (Figure 9). Click "Install" to continue. The installation may take a few minutes to complete.



Figure 9. Oracle Client Installation Summary Window.

• After completing the installation of the components, the Configuration Tools screen appears (Figure 10). After the system starts the tool and the "Next" button becomes enabled, click "Next" to set up or enable a net service name using the Oracle Net Configuration Assistant.

🕷 Oracle Universal Installer; Configuration Tools		×
Configuration Tools The following tools will be automatically started for you: These tools are optional. It is recommended, although not required, that these tools be	e run successfully.	
Tool Name	Status	
Oracle Net Configuration Assistant	in progress	-1
	Roty Cton	
	Reny Sup	
Details for Oracle Net Configuration Assistant:		
Parameter "responserile" = C:\oracle\ora90\network\install	iNnetca_clt.rsp	
Exit Help Installed Products.	s Previous Next	
ORACLE SOFTWARE POWERS THE INTERNET		

Figure 10. Oracle Client Configuration Tools Window.

• Select *No, I will create net service names myself* to create a new net service name and click "Next" to continue (Figure 11).

Oracle Net Configuration Assi	stant: Welcome 🛛 🗙
Net 8	Welcome to the Oracle Net Configuration Assistant. To access a database, or other service, across the network, you use a net service name. You can either create net service names yourself, or you can use service names already available through a directory service. Oracle recommends using a directory service if one is available for this nurnose
	 Yes, I want to use a directory service. There is one available for this purpose.
DB 1	No, I will create net service names myself. The Assistant will help me create one now.
	For more information press Help.
Cancel Help	< Back Next >

Figure 11. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Welcome Window.

• Select Oracle 8i or later database or service and click "Next" (Figure 12).



Figure 12. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Database Version Selection Window.

• Enter the service name associated with the database (assumed to be "SNHYP") and click "Next" (Figure 13).

Oracle Net Configuration Assistant: 1	Net Service Name Configuration, Service Name	×
	For an Oracle8i or later database or service you must provide its service name. An Oracle8i or later database's service name is normally its global database name. Service Name: SNHYP	
Cancel Help	🔇 Back Next >	

Figure 13. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Service Name Window.



• Select *TCP* as the network communication protocol and click "Next" (Figure 14).

Figure 14. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Network Protocol Window.

• Enter the database computer's host name (this example assumes HYP-ORACLE), select the port number (this example assumes the default 1521), and click "Next" (Figure 15).

Oracle Net Configuration Assistant	: Net Service Name Configu	ration,TCP/IP Protocol	×
	To communicate with the data protocol, the database compu Enter the host name for the co is located. Host name: A TCP/IP port number is also standard port number should © Use the standard port numl C Use another port number:	abase using the TCP/IP ter's host name is required. Imputer where the database HYP-ORACLE required. In most cases the be used. ber of 1521	
Cancel Help	(<u>B</u> a	ick <u>N</u> ext ≫	

Figure 15. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Host Name and Port Number Window.

• Select *Yes, perform a test* to perform a database connection test (Figure 16) and click "Next."

Oracle Net Configuration Assistan	t: Net Service Name Configuration, Test	×
	You can verify that an Oracle database can be reached, using the information provided, by performing a connection test. Would you like to test that a connection can be made to the database? © No, do not test <u>• Yes, perform a test</u>	
Cancel Help	🔇 Back Next >>	

Figure 16. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Connection Test Window.

• Enter the net service name (Figure 17). By default, the Oracle Net Configuration Assistant assumes the net service name is the same as the service name provided earlier (Figure 13). When finished, click "Next" to continue, and then exit the installer.

Oracle Net Configuration Assistant:	Net Service Name Configuration , Net Service Name 🔀
Net 8	Choose a name for this net service name. The Oracle Net Configuration Assistant has defaulted the net service name to be the same as the service name you entered earlier, but you can change it to be any name you choose. Net Service Name: SNHYP
Cancel Help	🔇 Back Next »

Figure 17. Oracle Net Configuration Assistant Net Service Name Window.

CIMMETRY AUTOVUE 2D DESKTOP INSTALLATION

Cimmetry AutoVue 2D Desktop enables PDF creation using Adlib Express for file types without a corresponding native software installation on the server. For example, AutoVue enables Adlib Express to convert MicroStation .dgn files and AutoCAD .dwg files to PDF without an installation of MicroStation or AutoCAD on the server. For more information, refer to the following reference:

• AutoVue Desktop Edition Installation and Administration Manual (5).

Installing Cimmetry AutoVue 2D Desktop v19.2 is straightforward. To install the software on the web server, use the following procedure:

- Navigate to the folder *SOFTWARE\Cimmetry_AutoVue\av19.2\win32* on the UACT DVD. Double-click "avsetup.exe" to start installation. Note: Running this setup file (which for convenience the researchers downloaded from the vendor's web site to the UACT DVD) will install an evaluation version of the software. For a full implementation of UACT, TSD will need to acquire a license directly from the software vendor.
- Select the default destination folder and follow the installation instructions.

It is necessary to configure the pen settings in AutoVue to make sure that the PDF files that Adlib Express Server generates are readable. During preliminary testing, the researchers found that in general, the best results with the current versions of AutoVue and Adlib Express involve the use of thin line pen settings. Use the following procedure to configure pen settings:

- Load AutoVue and open a Computer Aided Design (CAD) file, e.g., a MicroStation .dgn file or an AutoCAD .dwg file.
- From the File menu select *Print*. In the Print Properties window, select the *Pen Settings* tab (Figure 18).

rint Properties		>
Options Margins	Headers/Footers Watermark Stamps Pen Settings	
Current Pen Se	ttings	
default.c2t		
Save	Save As Delete	
From/To-		
Color Index	Thickness	
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01	
Change: Thickness	Units inches	
Partial Preview	OK Cancel Help	

Figure 18. AutoVue Pen Settings Window.

• Under *Current Pen Settings*, select *default.c2t* from the list of current pen settings (Figure 19).

Print Properties
Current Pen Settings
default.c2t
Save Save As Delete
From/To-
Color Index Thickness
248 0.01 249 0.01 250 0.01 251 0.01 252 0.01 253 0.01 255 0.01 255 0.01
Thickness Units 0.01 inches
Partial Preview OK Cancel Help

Figure 19. AutoVue Customized Pen Settings Window.

• Under *From/To*, select all entries by clicking on the first entry, then shift-click the last entry. Under *Change/Thickness*, set all line weights to 0.01 inch (0.254 mm) and click "OK."

MICROSOFT .NET 2.0 FRAMEWORK INSTALLATION

The programming interface of UACT uses the Microsoft .NET 2.0 framework. For UACT to function properly on the web server, users must install the .NET 2.0 framework. Note that only users with administrative privileges can install the .NET 2.0 framework. Use the following procedure to install Microsoft .NET 2.0 on the web server:

• Navigate to the folder *SOFTWARE\Microsoft_NET* on the UACT DVD, run file "dotnetfx.exe," and follow the installation instructions. Microsoft provides the .NET framework free of charge and hence the installation does not require an additional license.

ADLIB EXPRESS SERVER INSTALLATION

To facilitate the creation of PDF versions of user-uploaded files and system-generated forms, install and configure Adlib Express Server on the web server. Note that only users with an administrator privilege on the server can install and/or change Adlib Express Server options. For more information, refer to the following reference:

• Express User Guide Version 3.8 (6)

Note: To install and/or configure Adlib Express, make sure to connect to the server using the Console mode. If you use a remote desktop connection, make sure to use the mstsc/console command. Use the following procedure to install Adlib Express Server 3.8.2 on the web server:

- 1. Make sure Microsoft .NET Framework 2.0 is installed on the server prior to installing Adlib Express Server.
- 2. Navigate to the folder *SOFTWARE**Adlib_Express*\ on the UACT DVD, run file "ExpressServer382.exe," select the default complete setup and destination folder, and follow the installation instructions. Note: Running this setup file (which for convenience the researchers downloaded from the vendor's web site to the UACT DVD) will install an evaluation version of the software. For a full implementation of UACT, TxDOT will need to acquire a license directly from the software vendor.

Use the following procedure to configure Adlib Express Server:

• Start Express Server as an application by selecting *Start* > *All Programs* > *Adlib* > *Express* > *Express Server* (Figure 20).

🗑 Express Server - Stopped	_ 🗆 ×
<u>File T</u> ools Logging <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	
express	
Start Monitoring Current Status: Stopped	
Enable Multiple Option Configurations	
Current Option Configuration: Default Configuration	
Document Process Status	
Input Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\dpiInput-bin	
Output Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin	
Status:	
Progress:	

Figure 20. Express Server Window.

• If Express Server is already running as an application, click "Stop Monitoring."

- If Adlib Express Server is already running as a service, stop the Adlib Express Server service and then start Express Server as an application in order to change Adlib Express options. To stop the Adlib Express Server service:
 - On the Windows Taskbar select *Start > Run*, then type "services.msc" and click "OK";
 - in the Services console, select *Adlib Express Server* and click the "Stop" button (Figure 21); and
 - start Express Server as an application by selecting *Start* > *All Programs* > *Adlib* > *Express* > *Express Server*.



Figure 21. Services Console Window Showing the Adlib Express Server Service.

• From the Tools menu (Figure 20), select *Application Settings*.

- Select the following options (Figure 22):
 - Enable Adlib FMR
 - o Enable Restart after 250 documents
 - Enable Inactivity Timeout 600 seconds
 - o Enable Job Timeout 1000 seconds
 - o Maximum number of Retries: 3

-	
Application Settings	×
Enable Debugging	
🦳 Maintain "Adlib Express PDF Driv	er'' as Default Printer
Enable Adlib FMR	
🔽 Enable Restart after	250 Documents
Enable Inactivity Timeout	600 Seconds
Enable Job Timeout	1000 Seconds
Max. number of Retries:	3
<u> </u>	<u>C</u> ancel

Figure 22. Application Settings Window.

• Click "Options" (Figure 20) to modify Express Server options (Figure 23).

Express Serve	er Options					
Folders	Processing	Outputs	PDF Options	Document Options	Stamping	OCR
- Folders	•			•		-
Input F	older: D:\FI	LE_UPLOAD\dp	oilnput-bin			
	▼ In	clude Subfolders	🔽 Delet	e Empty Subfold	ers	
		ocess Document	te in EIEO Order (E	First In First Out)		
Input File Har	ndling: Move	e File to Destinati	on Folder	•		
Destin	ation D:\FI	LE_UPLOAD\dp	oiOutput-bin			
					t i i com	
Input File Nar	ning: [filena	me.ext		<u> </u>	Include Millised	conds
Outou	t Folder: D:\FI		lfOutput-bin			
	jeran		a a a par carr			
Error F	older: D:\FI	LE_UPLOAD\er	ror-bin			
	🔽 Cr	eate Input Subfo	lder structure in E	rror Folder		
Work	Folder:	llih Express\Wor	k			
🗖 🔽 Enable Lo	ogging					
Setting	 1s: Create Proce	ss Log: Enabled	· Email Notificatio	n: Disabled		
	,o. o.od.o i iooc		, 2110111001100010			
				<u>o</u> k	<u>C</u> ancel	Help

Figure 23. Express Server Folder Options Window.

• On the *Folders* tab, change the default folder names as follows (Figure 23):

b. I Inder of a printput of the state of the	0	Input Folder:	D:\FILE_UPLOAD\dpiInput-bin
--	---	---------------	-----------------------------

- o Destination Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\dpiOutput-bin
- Output Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin
- Error Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\error-bin
- Work Folder: C:\Adlib Express\Work (default folder)

Note: Adlib Express creates default input, output, error, and work folders. For UACT, it is necessary to select the folders above (created after copying the UACT folder from the UACT DVD—see instructions under "Folder Structure and Code Copying" earlier in this chapter).

• Under Input File Handling, select Move File to Destination Folder.

- Check *Enable Logging* and click the "…" button underneath. The Log Settings window appears (Figure 24). In the Log Settings window, select the following settings:
 - *Retention period:* 14 days
 - Enable Document Log
 - *Retain Process Log History* (if you would like to debug Adlib Express)
 - o Compress Process Log History to Zip (if you would like to debug Adlib Express)
 - Retain Document Log History (if you would like to debug Adlib Express)

Log S	ettings				×		
	Enable Process Log						
	Log Folder:	Log Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\Adlib_Log					
	Log Format:	TXT		•			
	Retention Period	14 -	Days	🔲 Retain Process Log History			
	Maximum File Siz	e 5 -	МВ	Compress Process Log History to Zip			
	Enable Document Lo)g					
	Log Folder:	D:\FILE_UPLO	AD\Adlib_Log				
	Log Format:	TXT		•			
	📃 Retain Document	t Log History					
	🔽 Compress Docum	ent Log History to	o Zip				
	Enable Email Docum	ent Log Notificati	on				
	Email Notification	Settings: Outbox:	Enabled; SMT	P: Disabled			
				<u>D</u> K <u>C</u> ancel			

Figure 24. Log Settings Window.

- On the *Processing* tab (Figure 25), select the following settings:
 - o Check Input Folder Every 5 seconds
 - Enable DPI/XML Job Ticket Processing
 - Move File to Destination Folder option under Job Ticket File Handling
 - o Cancel DPI Job Ticket Processing on Conversion Error
 - Cancel DPI Job Ticket Processing on Missing Document Input
 - Cancel DPI Job Ticket on PDF Security

Express Serve	er Options						
Folders	Processing	Outputs	PDF Options	Docume Option	nt s	Stamping	OCR
Processing C	Processing Options						
C Che	C Check Input Folder Once						
⊙ Che	Check Input Folder Every 5 Seconds						
Enable D	PI/XML Job Tick	et Processing -					
Job Ticl	ket File Handling:	Move File to [Destination Folde	r	-		
🔽 Can	cel DPI Job Tick	et on Conversion	Error				
🔽 Can	cel DPI JobTicke	t Processing on I	Missing Documer	nt Input			
🔽 Can	cel DPI Job Tick	et on PDF Securi	ity				
Enable E	Enable Email Processing						
Setting	gs: Inbox Enable	d; Outbox Enabl	ed				
Enable S	cripting						
Setting	Settings:						
Enable D	Enable Document Validation						
Settings: Cancel Processing on:							
				<u>o</u> k		Dancel	Help

Figure 25. Express Server Processing Settings Window.

• On the *Outputs* tab (Figure 26), click the "..." button under *Convert to PDF Format*.

Express Serve	r Options							
Folders	Processing	Outputs	PDF Options	Document Options	Stamping	OCR		
Convert to	Convert to PDF Format							
Output	Output to: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin							
Convert to	o Text Format —							
Output	to: D:\FILE_U	PLOAD\pdfOutp	ut-bin					
Convert to	o Image Format -							
Output	to: D:\FILE_U	PLOAD\pdfOutp	ut-bin					
Convert to	o PDF Information	n Format						
Output	Output to: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin							
Convert to	o HTML Format							
Output	Output to: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin							
Convert to	o MS Word Form	at						
Output	Output to: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin							
Convert to RTF Format								
Output to: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin								
					1			
			<u>(</u>	<u>0</u> K	<u>Cancel</u>	Help		

Figure 26. Express Server Outputs Settings Window.

- The Information Settings screen appears (Figure 27). In this screen, select the following settings, then click "OK":
 - Move File to Output Folder under File Handling
 - o *filename.ext.pdf* under *File Naming*
 - Preserve File Extension
 - Preserve Last Modified Date

C	onvert To PDF Set	tings		×
	Settings			
	File Handling:	Move File to Output Folder	•	
	Folder:			
	File Naming:	filename.ext.pdf	•	
		☑ Preserve File Extension	🗖 Include Milliseconds	
		✓ Preserve Last Modified Date	🔲 Split Into Single Page Files)	
			<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel	

Figure 27. Convert to PDF Settings Window.

- Click the "…" button under *Convert to PDF Information Format* in the Express Server Options window (Figure 26). The Convert to PDF Information Settings screen appears (Figure 28). On this screen, do the following:
 - Select the following options under *PDF Information Type*:
 - Text
 - File
 - Pages
 - Bookmarks
 - Select the following options under *PDF Information Options*:

,

- Format: CSV
- *Encoding*: ISO88591
- CSV Delimiter:
- CSV Headings: No
- *Text Style*: Default

Convert to PDF Infor	mation Settings	×			
Settings					
File Handling:	Move File to Output Folder				
Folder:					
File Naming:	filename.ext.txt				
	Preserve File Extension				
PDF Information Type	,				
🔽 Text	🔽 File 🔽 Pages				
🔽 Bookmarks	🗖 Hyperlinks 🔲 Form Fields				
🔲 Metadata	🗖 XMP Metadata 🛛 🗖 OCR Zone Data				
🔲 Digital Signa	ture Fields				
PDF Information Optic	ons				
Format:	CSV Encoding: IS088591				
CSV Delimeter:	, CSV Headings: No 💌				
Text Style:	Default				
	<u> </u>				

Figure 28. Convert to PDF Information Settings Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab (Figure 29), select the following settings:
 - *PDF Version*: 1.3
 - *PDF Type*: PDF
 - Font Embedding
 - Enable PDF Security
 - Enable PDF Open Settings

Express Serve	Express Server Options						
Folders	Processing	Outputs	PDF Options	Document Options	Stamping	OCR	
PDF Options	PDF Options						
Setting	Settings: Optimize: Yes; Convert Colors to Grayscale: No; Page Content Compression: Yes						
PDF V	ersion: 1.3	🛨 🔲 Inherit	From PDF Docun	nent P	DF Type: PDI	F 💌	
Co 🟹	nvert Using Nativ	ve Application Su	ipport 📃 Co	onvert Using Ext	ended File Type	Support	
E Bookmarks, H	Hyperlinks and T	able of Contents	Settings				
Setting	gs: Bookmarks: E	Enabled; Hyperli	nks: Disabled; Ta	ble of Contents:	Disabled		
Font Emb	edding						
Setting	Settings: Partial Fonts: Yes; Standard Fonts: Yes; Licensed Fonts: No; Multi-Language: Yes						
Enable Pl	DF Security						
Setting	gs: Encryption: 4	0 Bit; Do not allo	ow: c,a,s				
- Transformatio	on						
Settings: Page Scaling: Disabled; Page Content Scaling: Enabled							
Enable PDF Open Settings							
Settings: Page Mode: Bookmarks; Magnification: Default; Page Layout: Single Page							
			<u>(</u>	<u>i</u> k	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp	

Figure 29. Express Server PDF Options Settings Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab of the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *PDF Options* (Figure 29). The PDF Compression Options screen appears (Figure 30). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - o Optimize for Fast Web View
 - Page Content Compression
 - Resolution: 300 dpi
 - Color Image Compression: Automatic
 - Compression Level: Maximum
 - Monochrome Image Compression: CCITT Group 4

PDF Compression Options	X
PDF Compression Optimize for Fast Web View Convert Colors to Gray Scale ✓ Page Content Compression	
Resolution:	300 💌 dpi
Downsample Images to PDF R	esolution
Color Image Compression:	Automatic
Compression Level:	Maximum
Monochrome Image Compression:	CCITT Group 4 🔽 🔽 Lossless
	<u>D</u> K <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 30. PDF Compression Options Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab of the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *Bookmarks, Hyperlinks, and Table of Contents Settings* (Figure 29). The Bookmarks, Hyperlinks, and Table of Contents Settings window appears (Figure 31). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - Enable Bookmarks
 - o Do not select (or unselect) Enable Hyperlinks

Bookmarks, Hyperlinks and Table of Contents Settings	X
Bookmark Settings: Enabled	
Enable Hyperlinks Hyperlink Settings: Disabled	
Enable Table of Contents Table of Contents Settings: Disabled	
	<u>D</u> K <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 31. Bookmarks, Hyperlinks, and Table of Contents Settings Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab of the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *Font Embedding* (Figure 29). The Font Embedding Options window appears (Figure 32). Select the following settings and click "OK:"
 - o Embed Partial Fonts
 - o Embed Standard Fonts
 - o Embed Licensed Fonts
 - o Multi-Language Support

Font Embedding Options						
Embed Partial Fonts (minimizes file size)						
🔽 Embed Standard Fonts (Arial, Times New Roman,)						
I▼ Embed Licensed Fonts						
🔽 Multi-Language Support (Asian, Eastern European,)						
<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel						

Figure 32. Font Embedding Options Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab of the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *Enable PDF Security* (Figure 29). The PDF Security Settings window appears (Figure 33). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - Encryption: 40 Bit Encryption Acrobat 3+
 - Do not select (or unselect) Printing
 - *Changing the Document*
 - Selecting Text and Graphics
 - o Do not select (or unselect) Adding or Changing Annotations and Form Fields

PDF Security Settings
Specify Password To
Open the Document:
Change Security Options:
Obscure Password with Asterisks
Security Options Encryption: 40 Bit Encryption - Acrobat 3+ Do Not Allow: Printing Changing the Document Selecting Text and Graphics Adding or Changing Annotations and Form Fields
<u> </u>

Figure 33. PDF Security Settings Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab of the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *Transformation* (Figure 29). The Transformation window appears (Figure 34). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - Do not select (or unselect) *Enable Page Scaling*
 - Enable Page Content Scaling
 - *Scale by Margin (inches)*: 0.25 (all margins)
 - o Page Content Alignment: Center-Center

Transformation	×				
Enable Page Scaling					
Target Page Size:					
Page Content Splitting: None					
🔽 Enable Page Content Scaling					
C Scale by Percent					
Height: 100 🖉 % Width: 100 🖉 %					
Scale by Margin (inches)					
Top: 0.25 Bottom: 0.25					
Left: 0.25 Right 0.25					
Lock Aspect Ratio					
Page Content Alignment: Center-Center 💌					
<u> </u>					

Figure 34. Transformation Settings Window.

- On the *PDF Options* tab of the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *Enable PDF Open Settings* (Figure 29). The PDF Open Settings window appears (Figure 35). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - *Page Mode*: Bookmarks and Page
 - *Magnification*: Default
 - Page Number: 1
 - o Page Layout: Single Page
 - Only Display Bookmark Panel if Bookmarks Exist

P	DF Open Setting	s		×
	Page Mode:	Bookmarks and Page	Magnification:	Default
	Page Number:	1	Page Layout:	Single Page 💌
		🔲 Hide Menubar		🗖 Hide Toolbar
		🔽 Only Display Bookmark F	Panel if Bookmarks I	Exist
			<u> </u>	IK <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 35. PDF Open Settings Window.

• Select the *Document Options* tab on the Express Server Options window (Figure 36):

Express Serve	er Options					
Folders	Processing	Outputs	PDF Options	Documen Options	t Stamping	OCR
Computer Aid	led Design (CAD)) Settings				
Setting	gs: Portrait: Table	oid; Landscape:	Tabloid			
HTML Setting	gs					
Setting	gs: Orientation: F	Portrait; Page Siz	e: Letter			
MSG Setting	s					
Setting	gs: Convert Usin	g: MS Outlook; F	^p rocess Attachme	ents: Yes		
Text Settings						
Setting	gs: Orientation: F	Portrait; Page Siz	e: Letter; Font Si	ze: 7		
			<u> </u>		<u>C</u> ancel	<u>H</u> elp

Figure 36. Express Server Document Options Window.

- Click the "…" button under *Computer Aided Design (CAD) Settings*. The Computer Aided Design (CAD) Settings window appears (Figure 37). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - o Convert HPGL Using Native Application
 - Portrait Page Size: Tabloid
 - o Landscape Page Size: Tabloid
 - *Margin (inches)*: 0.25 (both vertical and horizontal)

Computer Aided Design (CAD) S	iettings	×
Computer Aided Design (CAD)		
Convert Colors to Black		
Convert HPGL Using Na	tive Application	
Page Size		
Portrait Page Size:	Tabloid 💌	
Landscape Page Size:	Tabloid 💌	Default
Vertical: 0.25	Horizontal:	0.25
	<u>0</u> K	Cancel

Figure 37. Computer Aided Design Settings Window.

- On the *Document Options* tab in the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *HTML Settings* (Figure 36). The HTML Settings window appears (Figure 38). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - Orientation: Portrait
 - o Size: Letter
 - o *Margins (inches)*: 0.25 (all margins)

HTML Settings					X
Page Properties	(inches)—				
Orientation:	Portrait				
Size:	Letter	-			
Height:	11		Width:	8.5	
- Margina (inches)				
Top:	0.25		Bottom:	0.25	
Left:	0.25		Right:	0.25	
			<u>o</u> k	<u>C</u> ancel	

Figure 38. HTML Settings Window.

- On the *Document Options* tab in the Express Server Options window, click the "…" button under *Text Settings* (Figure 36). The Text Settings window appears (Figure 39). Select the following settings and click "OK":
 - o *Font Name*: Courier New
 - o *Font Style*: Regular
 - Enable Page Layout Settings
 - Orientation: Portrait
 - o Page size: Letter
 - o Font Size: 7
 - *Margins (inches)*: 0.25 (both vertical and horizontal)

Text Settings	X
Font Name:	Courier New
Font Style:	Regular
Enable Page Layout Sett	ings
Orientation:	Portrait
Page Size:	Letter
Font Size:	7 💌
Margins (inches)	
Vertical: 0.25	Horizontal: 0.25
	<u>Q</u> K <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 39. Text Settings Window.

• When finished with the settings, click "OK" on the Express Server Options window to save the changes and go back to the main interface (Figure 40).

🖌 Express Server - Stopped 📃 📃	×
<u>File T</u> ools Logging <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	
sexpress	
Start Monitoring Current Status: Stopped	
Enable Multiple Option Configurations	
Current Option Configuration: Default Configuration	
Document Process Status	
Input Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\dpiInput-bin	
Output Folder: D:\FILE_UPLOAD\pdfOutput-bin	
Status	
]
Progress:	

Figure 40. Express Server Main Interface Window.

- To run Express Server as an application, click "Start Monitoring."
 - If Express Server will be used as a service and it stops working (making it necessary to restart the service), first run Express Server as an application to clear all pending PDF conversion jobs in the folder E:\UACT\FILE_UPLOAD\dpiInput-bin.
 - Under normal operation conditions, it is *not* advisable to run Express Server as an application in an environment where it may be necessary to convert hundreds of files to PDF. Although Express Server has an option to restart automatically after processing a predetermined number of files (which the vendor recommends), that option tends to fail often when running Express Server as an application.

- To create an Adlib Express Server service, perform the following steps:
 - Open the Command Prompt console by selecting *Start* > *Run*, then type "cmd" and click "OK." The command prompt window opens.
 - Enter the following command line (the Adlib Express Server service will be created, but it is not running yet) (Figure 41):

```
C:\"Program Files"\Adlib\Express\adexps.exe /INSTALL_SERVICE
```



Figure 41. Install Adlib Service Window.

- To configure the Adlib Express Server service, perform the following steps:
 - On the Windows task bar, select *Start* > *Run*, then type "services.msc" and click "OK"; and
 - on the Services console (Figure 42), right-click "Adlib Express Server" and select *Properties* to open the Adlib Express Server Properties window (Figure 43).



Figure 42. Adlib Express Server Service Properties Window.

• Select the *Log On* tab in the properties window and configure the service to run with an administrator account (Figure 43).

Adlib Express Server Pro	perties (Local Computer)	? ×
General Log On Reco	very Dependencies	
Log on as:		
C Local System accour Allo <u>w</u> service to in	it iteract with desktop	
• This account	J-Le@tti.servers	<u>B</u> rowse
Password:	•••••	
<u>C</u> onfirm password:	•••••	
You can enable or disabl	e this service for the hardware p	rofiles listed below:
Hardware Profile		Service
Profile 1		Enabled
	Enable	<u>D</u> isable
	OK Canc	el <u>A</u> pply

Figure 43. Log On Tab of the Adlib Express Server Properties Window.

• On the Services console (Figure 42), right-click "Adlib FMR" and select *Properties* to open the Adlib FMR (Fault Monitoring and Recovery) Properties window (Figure 44).

Multip Frank Propercies (cocare	omputer)	? ×
General Log On Recovery	Dependencies	
Log on as:		
Local System account Allow service to interact	t with desktop	
C Ihis account:	Browse	
Password:		
Confirm password:		
You can enable or disable this	service for the hardware profiles listed below	v:
You can enable or disable this Hardware Profile Profile 1	service for the hardware profiles listed below Service Enabled	v:
You can enable or disable this Hardware Profile Profile 1	service for the hardware profiles listed below Service Enabled	v:
You can enable or disable this Hardware Profile Profile 1	service for the hardware profiles listed below Service Enabled Enable	

Figure 44. Adlib FMR Properties Window.

- To configure Distributed Component Object Model (DCOM) permissions (whether running Express Server as an application or as a service), do the following:
 - On the Windows task bar, select *Start > Run*, then type "dcomcnfg" and click "OK." The Component Services window appears (Figure 45).



Figure 45. DCOM Config Folder in the Component Services Window.

- In the Component Services window, expand the Component Services folder until the *DCOM Config* folder appears. Expand the *DCOM Config* folder.
- The following DCOM objects belong to applications that Express Server uses in the PDF conversion process:
 - AdConv.AdConvNS
 - AdlibPDF.PDFBookmark
 - AutoVue.Application
 - Microsoft Word
 - Microsoft Excel
 - Microsoft PowerPoint
 - Microsoft Visio

- For each of these DCOM objects, complete the following steps:
 - Right-click the object and select *Properties* to open the Properties window (Figure 46).

AdConv.AdConvNS Properties	? ×
General Location Security Endpoints Identity	
Launch and Activation Permissions	
C Use Default	
Customize	<u> </u>
Access Permissions	
C Use De <u>f</u> ault	
Customize	E <u>d</u> it
Configuration Permissions	
C Use Defa <u>u</u> lt	
Customize	E dit
OK Car	icel <u>Apply</u>

Figure 46. AdConv.AdConvNS Properties Window.

- In the Properties window (Figure 46), select the *Security* tab.
- Under *Launch and Activation Permissions* in Figure 46, select *Customize* and click "Edit" to show the Launch Permission window (Figure 47).

Launch Permission		? ×
Security		
		1
Group or user names:		
Administrators (GIM-DEV\Ad	ministrators)	
Le, Jerry (J-Le@tti.servers)		
SYSTEM		
,	A.44	Berroux 1
	Aggg	
Permissions for Le, Jerry	Allow	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch	Allow	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch	Allow V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation	Allow V V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation Remote Activation	Allow V V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation Remote Activation	Allow V V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation Remote Activation	Allow V V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation Remote Activation	Allow V V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation Remote Activation	Allow V V V	Deny
Permissions for Le, Jerry Local Launch Remote Launch Local Activation Remote Activation		

Figure 47. Launch Permission Window.

- Make sure the account that is running the Express Server service is included in the list of permissible users.
- Click "OK" to close the Launch Permission window.
• Under *Access Permissions* in Figure 46, select *Customize* and click "Edit" to show the Access Permission window (Figure 48).

Access Permission		? ×
Security		
<u>G</u> roup or user names: <u>G</u> Le, Jerry (J-Le@tti servers) SELF SYSTEM		
Permissions for Le, Jerry	Add	<u>R</u> emove
nemote Access		

Figure 48. Access Permission Window.

- Make sure the account that is running the Express Server service is included in the list of permissible users.
- Click "OK" to close the Access Permission window.
- Configure Data Execution Prevention (DEP) to ensure that Windows allows the Express Server and Adlib FMR executables to run, as follows:
 - On the windows task bar, select *Start* > *Run*, then type "sysdm.cpl" and click "OK" to open the System Properties window (Figure 49).

tem Properties		
cem Propercies		
General	Computer Name	Hardware
Advanced	Automatic Updates	Remote
You must be logged	on as an Administrator to make m	ost of these changes.
Performance		
Visual effects, proc	essor scheduling, memory usage,	and virtual memory
		<u>Settings</u>
- User Profiles		
D LL		
Desktop settings r	elated to your logon	
		S <u>e</u> ttings
- Startup and Recov		
System startup, sys	ery stem failure, and debugging inform	ation
		Settings
	Environment Variables	Error Reporting

Figure 49. System Properties Window.

o Select the Advanced tab. Under Performance, click "Settings."

• Select the *Data Execution Prevention* tab and select the *Turn on DEP for all programs and services except those I select:* option (Figure 50).

Performance Options
Visual Effects Advanced Data Execution Prevention
 Data Execution Prevention (DEP) helps protect against damage from viruses and other security threats. How does it work? Turn on DEP for essential Windows programs and services only Turn on DEP for all programs and services except those I select:
Add Remove
OK Cancel Apply

Figure 50. Performance Options: Data Execution Prevention Setting Tab.

- Click the "Add" button and navigate to C:\Program Files\Adlib\Express. Select *adexps.exe* and click "OK."
- Repeat the last step to add the "AdlibFMR.exe" file.
- Click "OK" several times until exiting the properties window.

- To configure Adlib Express Server to run as a service automatically, use the following procedure:
 - On the Windows task bar, select Start > Run, then type "services.msc" and click "OK" to display the Services console (Figure 51).



Figure 51. Services Console.

- On the Services console, right-click "Adlib Express Server" and select *Properties* (Figure 52).
- On the General tab, select the startup type Automatic and click "OK."

Adlib Express Serv	er Properties (Local Computer)	×
General Log On	Recovery Dependencies	_
Service name:	Adlib Express Server	
Display <u>n</u> ame:	Adlib Express Server	
<u>D</u> escription:		
Pat <u>h</u> to executabl C:\Program Files\	e: Adlib\Express\adexps.exe	
Startup typ <u>e</u> :	Automatic	
Service status:	Stopped	
<u>S</u> tart	Stop <u>P</u> ause <u>R</u> esume	
You can specify th from here.	he start parameters that apply when you start the service	
Start para <u>m</u> eters:		
	OK Cancel Apply	

Figure 52. General Tab of the Adlib Express Server Properties Window.

- Close the Services console.
- Close any open applications and reboot the server. Adlib Express Server will start up automatically after rebooting the server.

ESRI ARCGIS SERVER V9.2 INSTALLATION

This programmer guide assumes that ESRI ArcGIS Server version 9.2 has been installed on an implementation server that will be available for the UACT application. This programmer guide will not provide guidance on the installation of ESRI ArcGIS Server. However, in the following section, the programmer guide provides systematic instructions for the configuration of the ArcGIS Server mapping component.

UACT MAPPING COMPONENT CONFIGURATION

This section provides instructions on the configuration of the UACT mapping component that displays GIS data including aerial photography, route network, utility installations, and utility conflict outlines. The mapping component configuration includes the generation of a new GIS Administrator account, creation of a new map service, and creation of a new map application.

Create A New ArcGIS Server Administrator

The installation of ArcGIS Server should instruct the installer to create a new GIS Server Administrator account in the agsadmin system user group. If the account does not exist, create a new account as follows:

- Go to *Start* > *All Programs* > *Administrative Tools* > *Computer Management*.
- Double-click on "System Tools."
- Double-click on "Local Users and Groups."
- Click on "Users."
- In the Computer Management menu bar, select *Action > New User* and provide the required information.

Now the user can be added to the groups of GIS server administrators on the map server, as follows:

- Go to *Start > All Programs > Administrative Tools > Computer Management*.
- Double-click on "System Tools."
- Double-click on "Local Users and Groups."
- Click on "Groups."
- Double-click on "agsadmin."
- Click on "Add," enter the GIS server administrator account name, and click "OK" (Figure 53).

agsadmin Properties	? ×
General	
agsadmin	
Description: GIS Server Administrators	
<u>M</u> embers:	
ArcGISWebServices ArcIMS TTI-SERVERS\E-Kraus TTI-SERVERS\J-Le TTI-SERVERS\N-Koncz	
Add	
OK Cancel	Apply

Figure 53. GIS Administrators Properties Window.

Next, add the GIS server administrator account to the group of server administrators, as follows:

- Go to *Start* > *All Programs* > *Administrative Tools* > *Computer Management*.
- Double-click on "System Tools."
- Double-click on "Local Users and Groups."
- Click on "Groups."
- Double-click on "Administrators."
- Click on "Add," enter the GIS server administrator account name, and click "OK" (Figure 54).

Administrators Properties ?	×
General	
Administrators	
Description: Implete and unrestricted access to the computer/domain	
Members:	
AdibExpress Administrator ArcGIS ArcGIS_ServerSOC ArcGISServerManager ArcGISSOC ArcGISSOM ArcHNS ServerAdmin TTI-SERVERS\C-Quiroga	
OK Cancel Apply	

Figure 54. Server Administrators Properties Window.

You now have sufficient permission to login to ArcGIS Server Manager and create a new Map Service.

Create a New Map Service

To create a new map service, follow these steps:

- Go to *Start* > *All Programs* > *ArcGIS* > *ArcGIS Server for the Microsoft* .*NET Framework* > *ArcGIS Server Manager*.
- A browser window should open a login page similar to the page shown in Figure 55:

🚈 ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft Interne	t Explorer			
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp				A 1997
🕒 Back 🔻 🕥 👻 😰 🐔 🔎 Search 🛭 👷	Favorites 🥝 🔗	🍇 🛃 🕶 🖵 🛍		
Address 🕘 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/k	ogin.aspx?ReturnUrl=%2	?fArcGISServer%2fDefault.aspx	•	🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🂙
CARC ArcGIS Server MANAGE sharing geographic information				Help 📥
		Log In		
	User name:	tti-kervers\j-le Example: Domain\UserName		
	Password:	•••••		
	ArcGIS server:	GIM-DEV		
		Log In		
🎒 🎑 🛛 🗍 🎻 ArcGIS Server Manag 📃 🤇	omputer Management			🖉 🔤

Figure 55. ArcGIS Server Manager Login Page.

- Log into ArcGIS Server Manager by providing the username and password and clicking on "Log In."
- Select the *Services* tab at the top of the page (Figure 56).
- Select a folder on the left-hand side under *Folders*, or create a new folder by clicking on "Add" under *Folders*.
- Click on the "Add New Service" link.



Figure 56. ArcGIS Server Manager, Services Tab.

- Enter "UACT_MapService" in the Name box of the Add New Service screen (Figure 57).
- Select Type: *Map Service*.
- Provide a description if desired.
- Select Startup Type: *Automatic*, and click "Next."

ArcGIS Serve	r Manager - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>Viev</u>	/ Favorites Tools Help	
🕒 Back 👻 🕤	🛛 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🛷 😥 - 😓 🔜 - 🖵 🎎	
Address 🙆 http	//impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Services/Service.aspx?Folder=UACT	🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🂙
GIS I	Logged in as tti-servers\j-le - Thursday, August 28, 2 aring geographic information	:008 5:14 PM Help Logout
Add New Ser	vice	
This wizard let Name:	s you add a new service to the GIS server. UACT_MapService	
туре:	Map Service	
Description:		
Startup Type	: Automatic •	
(A) Dana	Next > Cancel	

Figure 57. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 1.

- Under *Map Document*, browse to the location of the UACT ArcMap document to be used by the map (Figure 58). This should be located at d:\UACT\GIS\ArcMapDocument\.
- Under *Output Directory*, enter the following:

d:\arcgisserver\arcgisoutput

• Under Server Cache Directory, enter the following

d:\arcgisserver\arcgiscache

• Click "Next."

ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft	Internet Explorer	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools		
🌀 Back 👻 🕤 👻 😰 🔥 🔎 Se	arch 👷 Favorites 🛛 🖉 🔹 🕞 🛩 🖵 🏭	
Address 🙆 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcG	ISServer/Services/Service.aspx?Folder=UACT	💌 芛 Go 🛛 Links 🌺
GIS AFCGIS SERVER M	ANAGER ormation	ugust 28, 2008 5:17 PM 🔺 Help Logout
Add New Service		
Map Document:	\\GIM-DEV\0-5475\UACT_MAP\UACTDEV\ArcMapDocument\UACT_Ho ~ Type in the location of the resource. If you want to browse to a location, only shared drives appear in the list.	
Data Frame:	Active Data Frame 💽 Change	
Output Directory:	d:\arcgisserver\arcgisoutput	
Virtual Output Directory:	http://gim-dev/arcgisoutput	
Supported Image Return Type:	MIME + URL	
Specify cache directory		
Server Cache Directory:	d:\arcgisserver\arcgiscache	
	<pre>< Previous Next > Save Cancel</pre>	
Cone		Trusted sites

Figure 58. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 2.

• On the following screen, use the default settings as shown in Figure 59, and click "Next."

🚰 ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft Internet E	xplorer _ 🔲 🗙
<u> Eile E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	
🄇 Back 👻 🕤 👻 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 📌 Fa	vorites 🐵 😥 - 😓 🖾 - 🖵 🚉
Address 🚳 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Serve	rices/Service.aspx?Folder=UACT 💽 🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🏾
CARCGIS SERVER MANAGER sharing geographic information	Logged in as tti-servers\j-le - Thursday, August 28, 2008 5:22 PM Help Logout
Add New Service	
Mapping (always enabled) Mobile Data Access KML Network Analysis	There are no properties for this capability
 ✓ Enable Web Access URL: UACT/UACT_MapService/MapServe Operations allowed: ✓ Map ✓ Query ✓ Data 	۲ ۲
E Done	< Previous Next > Save Cancel

Figure 59. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 3.

• On the following screen, use the default settings shown in Figure 60, and click "Save."

🚰 ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft Internet Explorer				_ 🗆 🗙
<u>File Edit View Favorites Tools H</u> elp				
🔇 Back 🝷 🕥 👻 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 🛭 👷 Favorites 🛛 🚱 🖉 🌺 🚍	- 🗖 🚉			
Address 🙆 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Services/Service.aspx?Folder=UAC	T		💌 🄁 Go	Links »
GIS ArcGIS Server MANAGER sharing geographic information	Logged in as tti-ser	vers\j-le - Thursday,	August 28, 2008 5:2 Help Lo	3 PM
Add New Service				
Pooling				
This service should be: © Pooled - Used repeatedly by many clients.				
m O Not Pooled - Used by a single client and disposed of after use.				
Minimum number of instances:	1			
Maximum number of instances:	2]		
Timeouts				
The maximum time a client can use a service:	600	seconds		
The maximum time a client will wait to get a service:	60	seconds		
	Previous Next > 3	Save Cancel		
				•
🙆 Done			Trusted sites	

Figure 60. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 4.

• ArcGIS Server Manager should return to the Services tab, as shown in Figure 61.

🚰 ArcGIS Server Manager - Micros	oft Internet Explorer					_ 🗆 🗵
<u>File Edit View Favorites Tools</u>	Help					
🚱 Back 🝷 🕥 👻 📓 🏠 🔎	5earch 📌 Favorites 🦑) 🔊 • 💺 🔜 • 🗖				
Address 🕘 http://impdev.tamu.edu/Ar	GISServer/Services/Default	t.aspx?Folder=UACT			_ > •	io Links »
Sarces ArcGIS Server sharing geographic is	VIANAGER nformation	不均称产	Logged in as tti-servers\j	-le - Thurso	lay, August 28, 2008 Settings Help	5:23 PM 🔺 Logout
Home	Services	Applications	GIS Server			
Folders	Services in UAC	т			<<1 - 2 o	f 2>>
GAdd GDelete SProperties	e Publish a GIS	Resource & Add	New Service			_
UACT	🕑 Start 💌 Sto	op 🕛 Pause 🥺 D	elete			
UIR	Name	Name Type		Status	Instances (In Use/Running)	Edit
	🗉 🔲 🖾 UAC	CT_MapService	Map Service	Stopped	0/0	0
	🗉 🔲 🖾 Uac	tDev_MapService	Map Service	Started	0/1	0
Related Help Topics					<<1 - 2 0	f2>>
Publishing a GIS resource to the server						
Tutorial: Publishing a map service						
Adding a new service						
Organizing services						
						–
Cone					🕜 Trusted site	s //.

Figure 61. ArcGIS Server Manager, Add New Service, Step 5.

To start the new service, do the following:

• Check the checkbox next to the new map service and click "Start" (Figure 62).



Figure 62. ArcGIS Server Manager: Start New UACT Map Service.

• The map service is now started. If you want to edit or modify any settings of the map service, click the pencil icon in the *Edit* column of the map service's row.

Create A New Map Application

Now we can proceed to create a map application that uses the new map service, as follows:

- Select the *Applications* tab on the top menu.
- Click on "Create Web Application" link (Figure 63).

🗿 ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsof	t Internet Explorer				_ 🗆 >
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	Help				
😋 Back 👻 🕤 👻 😰 🐔 🔎 Se	earch , 🛧 Favorites 🧔 🧟) 🖉 • 📚 🔜 • 💭	iä,		
Address 💩 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcC	SISServer/Applications/Del	fault.aspx		💌 🔁	Go Links ^V
GIS ArcGIS SERVER M		KI ARE	ogged in as tti-servers\	j-le - Thursday, August 28, 2008 Settings Help	5:26 PM Logout
Home	Services	Applications	GIS Server		
View	Web Application	5		<< 1 - 3 (of 3 >>
Web Applications ArcGIS Explorer Maps	Create Web Ap	pplication			
KML Network Links	Name	Author	Date Modified	URL	
WMS Services		D TTI- D SERVERS\J-L	e 6/20/2008 3:36:25	PM http://GIM- DEV/UACT_MapApp	2 3
Working with applications in Manager	Test_Uact	TTI- SERVERS\J-L	e 7/11/2008 3:01:49	PM http://GIM-DEV/Test_Uact	2 3
Tutorial: Creating a Web application	■ UACTDEV_Ma	pApp TTI- SERVERS\J-L	e 8/8/2008 10:03:34	AM http://GIM- DEV/UACTDEV_MapApp	2 3
Managing KML network links Viewing WMS services				<< 1 - 3 (of 3 >>
				V Trusted site	es

Figure 63. ArcGIS Server Manager, Applications Tab.

- The Web Application screen should appear (see Figure 64).
- Enter the applicable host name under *Host*.
- Enter "UACT_MapApp" in the *Name* box and click "Next."

ArcGIS Server Mar	nager - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vi	vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	1
🚱 Back 🔹 🐑 🕤	💌 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣 🔗 - چ 🕋 - 🛄 🏭 🖄	
Address 🔄 http://impde	ev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Applications/WizardPage.aspx 🛛 💽 Go	Links »
GIS sharing	IS SERVER MANAGER geographic information Logged in as tti-servers\j-le - Friday, August 29, 2008 3:16 Help Log	PM 📤
Web Applications Specify the name of t	the application you want to create and the host (web server machine) it will run on.	
Host:	GIM-DEV	
Name:	UACT_MapApp	
Description:		
	Next > Cancel	~
🕘 Done	🔮 Internet	

Figure 64. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Specify Name and Host.

- Under *Available Services*, expand ArcGIS Server Local node and select *UACT_MapService*.
- Click "Add" to select the map service to the map application (Figure 65).
- Click "Next."

🚰 ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft Intern	net Explorer				. 🗆 🗙
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp					2
🔇 Back 🝷 🕥 👻 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 💡	≿ Favorites 🛛 🧔 🗸	🗞 🛃 + 🖵 🚉			
Address 🙋 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServe	r/Applications/WizardPage.	aspx	•	🔁 Go 🚽	Links »
ArcGIS SERVER MANAC sharing geographic informat	Logged in as	tti-servers\j-le - Friday, S	September 19,	2008 3:33 Help Log	PM 🔺
Select Layers Preview Layers Choose the map services to display as la	vers in the web applica	tion.			
Available Services:	,	Selected Services:			
 ➡ ↓ gim-dev - ArcGIS Server Local ↓ TEST/Test_Service_6_16 ↓ TEST/TestService ↓ TEST/TestService ↓ TEST/TestService ↓ UACT/UACT_MapService ↓ ↓ ArcT/UactDev_MapService ↓ ↓ http://gim-dev - ArcIMS ↓ ↓ http://uir.tamu.edu - ArcIMS 	Add >	UACT/UACT_MapService		0	
Review Map Service		< Previous N	ext > Finish	Cancel	_
E Done			💽 🚺 Trust	ed sites	•

Figure 65. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Select Map Service.

• On the following screen, select *Editing*, and click "Add" (Figure 66).

ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft Internet Ex	plorer 🔳	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		1
🚱 Back 🝷 🐑 💌 😰 🏠 🔎 Search	📌 Favorites 🚱 🔗 - 🌺 🕋 - 🛄 🏭	8
Address 🔄 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Applicatio	ons/WizardPage.aspx 🛛 🖌 🕞 Go 🛛 Li	nks »
ArcGIS Server MANAGER sharing geographic information	ogged in as tti-servers\j-le - Friday, August 29, 2008 3: Help I	17 📤 .og(
Select Tasks Supporting Services		
execute.	Some tasks may require supporting GIS services in or	Jer
Available Task Items:	Current Tasks:	
Editing Find Address	···· Editing	=
Find Place		
Geoprocessing Query Attributes		
Search Attributes		\diamond
A	dd >	à
< R	emove	
	Configure	~
		>
E Done	🤡 Internet	

Figure 66. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Select Tasks.

• Click "Configure," and under the *General* tab check the checkbox next to *Utility Conflict Outline* (Figure 67).

ArcGIS Server Manager	r - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorites	Tools Help	
🕝 Back 🔹 🕥 🔹 💌	💈 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🧐 🔗 🎍 🗎	- 🔜 🏭 🦓
Address 🙋 http://impdev.tam	u.edu/ArcGISServer/Applications/WizardPage.aspx	✓ 🇲 Go Links »
GIS Arc ArcGIS Staring geog	ERVER MANAGER raphic information	ti-servers\j-le - Friday, August 29, 2008 3:18 PM Help Logout
Select Tasks Sup	General Settings Advanced	
Choose the tasks to inclu execute. Available Task Items:	Display name: Editing Edit data in: UACT/UACT_MapService 🗸	
Find Address	Editable layers:	Editable versions:
Find Place Geoprocessing Query Attributes Search Attributes	Utility Conflict Outline	The layers being edited are not versioned.
		OK Cance
	Configure	×
<		
ど Done		🥥 Internet

Figure 67. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Configure General Preferences of Task.

• Under the *Settings* tab, under *Snapping Rules*, check *Vertex*, *Edge*, and *End* for the Utility Conflict Outline layer (Figure 68).

🗿 ArcGIS Server Manager	r - Microsoft Internet Explorer					
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites	<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp					.
Ġ Back 🝷 🐑 👻 💌	💈 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🤣	🔗• 🍓 🔳 🗉 📴 🏭 🚳				
Address 🛃 http://impdev.tam	u.edu/ArcGISServer/Applications/WizardPage.aspx			*	🗲 Go	Links »
GIS Sharing geog	ERVER MANAGER	Logged in as tti-servers\j-le - Fr	iday, Aug	just 29, 2 F	:008 3:1 Help Lo	8 PM 🔷 Igout
	Task Configuration					×
Select Tasks Sup	General Settings Advanced					_
Choose the tasks to inclu execute.	Edits allowed:	Snapping Rules:				
Available Task Items:	Add Features Edit Attributes	Layer	Vertex	Edge	End	_
Editing Find Address		Utility Conflict Outline	~	✓	✓	
Find Place Geoprocessing	Selection Options:	Project Routes				_
Query Attributes	Tolerance: 6 pixels	Proposed I-10 Centerline Stations				
Scaren Attributes	Limit selection to: 20 features	Proposed Loop 610 Centerline Stations				
	Selection Color:	Proposed I-10 East to 610 North Direct				~
		Snapping Tolerance: 6 pixels				
	🗹 Allow user to change selection and snap	oping options				
		ſ	ÛK		ancel	1
			OR		ancer	
Done				🥑 Intern	iet	

Figure 68. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Configure Settings Preferences of Task.

- Do not change the other default settings.
- Click "OK" to leave the Task Configuration window.
- Click "Next."

• On the ArcGIS Server Local Connections screen, make sure the user name shown in the textbox belongs to the server administrators and agsadmin group on the map server (see section Create A New ArcGIS Server Administrator at the beginning of this chapter) (Figure 69).

🚰 ArcGIS Server Manager - Microsoft Internet Explorer
Eile Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🕞 Back 🔹 📀 👻 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 🤶 Favorites 🤣 🔗 - 🌺 🖀 - 🛄 🏭 🖄
Address 🔄 http://impdev.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Applications/WizardPage.aspx 🛛 💽 Go 🛛 Links 🎽
Cogged in as tti-servers\j-le - Friday, August 29, 2008 3:21 PM Help Logout
Aver CTR Remuer Local Connections
Artuis server Local connections
The web application you are building contains one or more ArcGIS Server Local connections. When your web application runs, it will connect to the local servers as the following user.
User name: gim-dev\ArcIMS Change
Because the web application can only reference one user name, each local server the application connects to needs to support the same user name and password. Consult the administrator of the particular ArcGIS Server to ensure that the user name and password you specify is valid and part of the AGSUSERS group for that local server.
The user name specified must also have write access to the Temporary ASP.NET directory. If it doesn't, when the application runs, you will see an error indicating that the user name doesn't have the appropriate access. Consult the administrator of the web server to grant this user the appropriate permissions.
< Previous Next > Finish Cancel
😂 Done 🥥 Internet 🦼

• Click "Next."

Figure 69. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Verify Local Connection User Name.

- On the Set Page Properties screen, enter "UACT Map Application" in the *Title text* box (Figure 70).
- Click "Next."

🗿 ArcGIS Server Ma	nager - Microsoft Internet	Explorer	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> v	vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		A.
Ġ Back 🝷 🛞 🕤	💌 😰 🏠 🔎 Searc	h 📌 Favorites 🚱 🔗 - 🌺	🔳 🗧 🔜 🏭 🦀
Address 🛃 http://impde	v.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Applic	ations/WizardPage.aspx	💙 ラ Go 🛛 Links 🎽
GIS sharing	IS SERVER MANAGER geographic information	Logged in as tti-servers\j-le - Frida	y, August 29, 2008 3:28 PM 📤 Help Logout
Set Page Propertie	≎5		
Title text:	UACT Map Application		
Theme:		1. A	
Web page links:	Name	URL	
	ESRI	http://www.esri.com	Ø 🙆 🗠 💧
	ESRI Support Center	http://support.esri.com	08
	Help	Help/Default.htm	Ø 🕴 🗸 📃
	Add Link	< Previous	Next > Finish Cancel
< 8			Tabana di
E			

Figure 70. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Set Page Properties.

- Click the "Settings" button next to *Overview Map* and check *Show when web application starts* (Figure 71).
- Click "OK."
- Click "Finish."

🙆 ArcGIS Server Man	ager - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favo	orites Tools Help	A.
🔇 Back 🝷 🕥 🕤	💌 😰 🏠 🔎 Search Favorites 🍕	3 🗟 - 💺 🔳 - 🛄 🛍 🂙
Address 🙋 http://impdev	.tamu.edu/ArcGISServer/Applications/WizardPage.asp	x 💽 🔂 Links 🎽
GIS sharing s	S SERVER MANAGER peographic information	ervers\j-le - Friday, August 29, 2008 3: 📤 Help L
Enable Map Elemer	Settings	
Select the map eleme	Choose the map service to display as the Overview Map.	
☑ Table of Contents	Map UACT/UACT_MapService V	Settings
🗹 Overview Map - H		Settings
🗹 Toolbar - provide	Show when web application starts	Settings
☑ North Arrow - dis navigation	OK Cancel	Settings
🗹 Scale Bar - provid	les a visual indication of distance on the map.	Settings
		< Previous Next > Finish C
<	Ш.	
ど Done		🥥 Internet

Figure 71. ArcGIS Server Manager, Create New Web Application: Overview Map Settings Window.

This completes the creation of the GIS map application. UACT will now be able to use this map application to view utility and project data.

MICROSOFT IIS FINAL CONFIGURATION

This section summarizes the steps to configure IIS to enable the UACT web site. Use the following procedure to configure the UACT web site created earlier in the installation process:

- Open IIS Manager: Navigate to *Start > Control Panel > Performance and Maintenance > Administrative Tools*, and click the "Internet Information Services" shortcut.
- In the left panel of the IIS Manager, right-click on UACT web site (or virtual directory) and select *Properties* in the context menu. The UACT Properties window appears (Figure 72).

CT Properties		?		
HTTP Headers	Custom Errors	ASP.NET		
Virtual Directory	Documents	Directory Security		
The content for this resour	ce should come from:			
A directory located on this computer				
🔿 A <u>s</u> ha	are located on another comp	puter		
C A rec	lirection to a <u>U</u> RL			
Local path: D:\UA	ст	Browse		
Script source access Read Write Directory browsing	 ✓ Log visits ✓ Index this 	s resource		
Application settings				
Application name:	ACT	Remove		
Starting point: <d< td=""><td>efault Web Site>\UACT</td><td>Configuration</td><td></td></d<>	efault Web Site>\UACT	Configuration		
Execute permissions: So	ripts only	▼		
Application pool:	efaultAppPool	Unjoad		
	OK Cancel	Apply Help		

Figure 72. UACT Properties Window.

• Click the "Configuration..." button on the *Virtual Directory* (or Home Directory) tab (Figure 73).

CT Properties		? ×		
HTTP Headers Virtual Directory	Custom Errors Documents	ASP.NET Directory Security		
Virtual Directory Documents Directory Security The content for this resource should come from: 				
Logal path: D:\UACT Browse Script source access ✓ Log visits Read ✓ Index this resource Write Directory browsing Application actions				
Application name:	UACT	Remove		
Starting point: Execute <u>p</u> ermissions: Applicatio <u>n</u> pool:	<default site="" web="">\UACT Scripts only DefaultAppPool</default>	Configuration		
Applicatio <u>n</u> pool:	DefaultAppPool	Unijoad		

Figure 73. UACT Properties Window: Virtual Directory Tab.

- The Application Configuration window appears (Figure 74).
- In the Application Configuration window, select the *Options* tab. Under *Application Configuration*, set the following:
 - Session timeout: 60 minutes.
 - Check Enable buffering.
 - Check Enable parent paths.
 - o ASP script timeout: 240 seconds.
- Click "OK" to return to the *Virtual Directory* tab.

Application Configuration	x
Mappings Options Debugging	
Application configuration ✓ Enable session state Session timeout: ★ 60 minutes ✓ Enable buffering ✓ Enable parent paths	
Default ASP language: VBScript	
ASP script timeout:	
Enable Side by Side assemblies	
Manifest file name:	
OK Cancel Help	

Figure 74. Application Configuration Window: Options Tab.

- Select the *HTTP Headers* tab (Figure 75).
- Check the *Enable content expiration* checkbox.
- Under *Web site content should*, select the *Expire immediately* radio button.

ACT Properties		? ×
Virtual Directory	Documents	Directory Security
✓ Enable content expiration Web site content should: ✓ Expire immediately	Custom Errors	ASP.NET
C Expire after 1 C Expire on Friday	Day(s)	▼ at 12:00:00 AM ×
X-Powered-By: ASP.NET		Add Edi <u>t</u> , <u>R</u> emove
Content rating		
Ratings help your u content your site p	users to identify what typ provides.	e of Edit Ratings
MIME types IIS serves only files with extensions registered in the MIME types list. To configure additional file extensions, click MIME Types.		
	OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 75. UACT Properties Window: HTTP Headers Tab.

• Click the "MIME Types..." button. The MIME Types window appears (Figure 76).

MIME Types	×
Registered MIME <u>types</u> (file	extensions):
	[<u>N</u> ew]
	Edit
	<u>R</u> emove
J	
Extension:	
MIME type:	
	OK Cancel

Figure 76. MIME Types Window.

- In the MIME Types window, click the "New" button. A new MIME Type window opens (Figure 77).
- Type "dgn" for Extension and "dgn" for MIME type.
- Click "OK."



Figure 77. New MIME Type Window.

• Repeat the previous steps to create a new MIME Type for the "dwg" extension: Click the "New" button, then enter "dwg" for Extension and "dwg" for MIME type. Click "OK." Both .dgn and .dwg MIME types (file extensions) are now registered and should appear in the MIME Types window (Figure 78).

MIME Types			×
Registered MIME <u>ty</u>	oes (file extensior	ns):	
.dgn dgn			<u>N</u> ew
.awg awg			<u>E</u> dit
			Demoura
I MIME type details			
Extension:	.dwa		
	dura.		
MIME type:	awg		
		OK	L Capcel L

Figure 78. MIME Types Window: New MIME Type.

- Click "OK" to complete the creation of the new MIME types.
- Click "OK" again to close the UACT Properties window.

• In the left panel of the IIS Manager, click "Web Service Extensions" (Figure 79).

File Action Yew Window Help Internet Information Services GIM-DEV (local computer) Application Pools Web Service Extensions All Unknown CGI Extensions Active Server Pages Ass Server Side Includes Server Side Inc	🐌 Internet Information Services (IIS) Manag	jer	
Internet Information Service GIM-DEV (local computer) Application Pools Web Service Extensions Application Pools Web Service Extensions Allow Prohibit Properties Internet Data Connector Service Extensions. Add a new Web service extensions. Extended (Standard /	🐚 Eile <u>A</u> ction <u>V</u> iew <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp		_8×
Internet Information Services GIM-DEV (local computer) Application Pools Web Sites Web Service Extensions Allow Prohibit Prohibit Tasks Tasks Tasks Corrector Server Side Includes Service Extensions Add a new Web service extension Add a new Web service extensions for a specific application Prohibit all Web service extensions Corrector Server Side Includes Service Extensions Meb Service Extensions Meb Service Extensions Allow all Web service extensions for a specific application Extended Standard		. ▶ ■ II	
Allow Prohibit Prohibit Properties Active Server Pages ASP.NET v1.1.4322 Properties ASP.NET v2.0.50727 Internet Data Connector Server Side Includes ServetExec WebDAV Add a new Web service extension Add a new Web service extension Add a new Web service extensions for a specific application Prohibit all Web service extensions Open Help Extended Standard	Internet Information Services GIM-DEV (local computer) ⊕ ⊕ ⊕ Application Pools ⊕ Web Sites Web Service Extensions	Web Service Extensions	Web Service Extension
Tasks Internet Data Connector Tasks Server Side Includes ServletExec WebDAV Add a new Web service extension WebDAV Allow all Web service extensions for a specific application Prohibit all Web service extensions Open Help Image: Connector Service extension for a specific application Extended (Standard / Standard /		Allow Prohibit Properties	All Unknown ISAPI Extensions Active Server Pages ASP.NET v1.1.4322 ASP.NET v2.0.50727
 Add a new Web service extension Allow all Web service extensions for a specific application Prohibit all Web service extensions Open Help Extended		Tasks	 Internet Data Connector Server Side Includes ServletExec WebDAV
Prohibit all Web service extensions Open Help Extended / Standard /		 Add a new Web service extension Allow all Web service extensions for a specific application 	
Extended / Standard /		 Prohibit all Web service extensions Open Help 	۲ F
		Extended Standard	

Figure 79. IIS Manager Window: Web Service Extensions.

- Make sure that the status of the following two extensions is "Allowed":
 - ASP.NET v2.0, and
 - Server Side Includes.
- If the status of any of these three extensions is "Prohibited," click the service name, then click the "Allow" button to change its status to "Allowed."
- Close the window after completing this step.

• Using Windows Explorer, expand the UACT folder, right-click the "File_Upload" folder, and select *Properties* to open the Properties window (Figure 80).

ile_Upload Pro	perties	? ×
General Shari	ng Security Web Sharing Customize	
Ø	File_Upload	
Туре:	File Folder	
Location:	D:\ArcIMS\Website\0-5475\UACTDEV	
Size:	6.30 MB (6,614,727 bytes)	
Size on disk:	6.48 MB (6,799,360 bytes)	
Contains:	85 Files, 12 Folders	
Created:	Monday, August 04, 2008, 2:38:03 PM	
Attributes:	<mark>I Read-only Advanced</mark> ☐ <u>H</u> idden	
	OK Cancel A	oply

Figure 80. UACT-UserFiles Folder: Properties Window.

• In the Properties window, select the *Security* tab (Figure 81).

ile_Upload Properties		? ×
General Sharing Security Web	Sharing Custo	mize
Group or user names:		
Administrators (GIM-DEV\Ad	ministrators)	
CREATOR OWNER		
SYSTEM	HS\Domain Adm	insj
Users (GIM-DEV\Users)		
	A <u>d</u> d	<u>R</u> emove
Permissions for Users	Allow	Deny
Full Control		
Modify Brood & Events		
List Folder Contents	H	
Read	~	
Write	\checkmark	
Coopiel Permissions		
For special permissions or for adva click Advanced.	inced settings, -	Advanced
OK	Cancel	Apply

Figure 81. UACT-UserFiles Folder: Security Tab.

- Make sure that *Users* under *Group or user names* have read and write permissions, and that *Administrators* have full control permission.
- Click "OK" to apply the settings.

ESRI ARCSDE CONFIGURATION

This section of the installation guide provides guidance on the configuration of ArcSDE. This installation guide assumes that ArcSDE and ArcCatalog have been installed previously. The UACT prototype installed ArcSDE on a server called gim-oracle. The installer should make changes according to the name of the local server used for the installation of ArcSDE. This guide will cover the following activities:

- Creating a new database connection.
- Importing the Utility_Conflict_Outline feature class into ArcSDE.

Create a New ArcSDE Database Connection

To create a new database connection, follow these steps:

- Open ArcCatalog and expand the *Database Connections* node (Figure 82).
- Click on "Add Spatial Database Connection."



Figure 82. ArcCatalog, Database Connections Window.

- In the Spatial Database Connection window, enter your server name in the *Server* box (Figure 83).
- Enter "port:5151" for *Service* and your database service name in the *Database* box.
- Enter username and password of the user account used when installing ArcSDE.
- Click "Test Connection."
- You should see "Connection succeeded" message. If not, check server name, database service name, and user account again.
- If the connection was created successfully, click "OK" in the message box and click "OK" again.

Spatial Database Co	onnection	? ×
Server:	gim-oracle.tti.servers	
Service:	port:5151	
Database:	oragim	
	(If supported by your DBMS)	
Account		
O Database auti-	nentication	
Username:	ufd_user	
Password:	××××	
	Save username and password	
C Operating syst	em authentication	
Connection details		
The following trans	actional version will be used:	
sde.DEFAULT	Change	
Save the trans	actional version name with the connection file.	
Test Connection	n OK Cano	el

Figure 83. Spatial Database Connection Window.
• The Database Connection window should show the new connection to the spatial database (Figure 84).



Figure 84. New Database Connection in Database Connection Window.

Importing the Utility Conflict Outline Feature Class into ArcSDE

To import an existing feature class layer into ArcSDE, follow these steps:

- Right-click on "Connection to <your spatial database server>."
- Select *Import > Feature Class (Single)*.

• The Feature Class to Feature Class window opens (Figure 85).

🥕 Featur	e Class to Feature Class			×
•	Input Features	•	P Help	-
	Output Location		Feature Class	
	Database Connections\Connection to gim-oracle.tti.servers.sde		Converts a shapefile, coverage feature class, or	
•	Output Feature Class		geodatabase teature class to a shapefile or qeodatabase feature class.	
	Expression (optional)		°	
	Field Map (optional)			
1	OK Cancel Environments << Hide He	 !		
		<u> </u>	1	-

Figure 85. Feature Class to Feature Class Window.

• Under *Input Features*, click the "Browse" button and browse to Utility_Conflict_Outline feature class located at

d:\UACT\GIS\Geodatabase\ConflictGDB.mdb\Utility_Conflict_Outline

• Do not change the default under *Output Location*.

• Enter a name for *Output Feature Class*: "Utility_Conflict_outline" (Figure 86).

➢ Feature Class to Feature Class		
Input Features	_	C Help
D:\ArcIMS\Website\0-5475\UACT_DEV\GIS\Geodatabase\ConflictGDB.mdb\Utility_Conflict,	ĕ	Output Feature Class
Output Location	-1	
Database Connections\Connection to gim-oracle.tti.servers.sde	≝	The name of the output feature class.
 Output Feature Class 	_	
Utility_Conflict_outline		
Expression (optional)		
Field Map (optional)		
TXDOT_UNIQ_ID (Long)	+	
UTIL_CNFLT_OUTLN_FROM_DT (Date)		
E-UTIL_CNFLT_OUTIN_TO_DT (Date)	x I	
CREATE_USER_NMI(Text)	<u> </u>	
CREATE_DT (bace) Procente_DT (bace) Procente_DT (bace) ·	↑ .	
OK Cancel Environments << H	Hide Help	T

Figure 86. Feature Class to Feature Class Window, Output Feature Class.

- Click "OK."
- Click "Close" in the following dialog box (Figure 87).

Feature Class to Feature Class	×
Completed	Close
	<< Details
Close this dialog when completed successfully	
successfully. End Time: Fri Aug 29 17:04:54 (Elapsed Time: 4.00 seconds) The output resolution is larger input feature class resolution	2008 than the

Figure 87. Feature Class to Feature Class Dialog Box.

• In the Database Connection window, double-click on "Connection to < Your spatial database server>." You should see a list of feature classes on your ArcSDE server, including the "Utility_Conflict_outline" feature class you just uploaded (Figure 88).

🟓 ArcCatalog - ArcEditor - Database Connections\Con	nection to gim-oracle.tti.ser 💶 🗖 🗙
<u>File Edit View Go Tools Window H</u> elp	
🕒 😂 🍘 🖻 🖻 🗙 🗠 🏭 🎆 🏭 😣	Q 🚳 🗖 😽 🛛 Q 🔍 🖤 🖉 🧕
Location: Database Connections\Connection to gim-oracle	e.tti.servers.sde
Stylesheet: FGDCESRI 🔽 🗹 🖆 🖆	E
 Catalog C:\ D:\ D:\ArcIMS\Website\0-5475\UACT_DEV\GIS D:\JERRY_TEST\GPServerExample \\gim-dev\GPServerExample ArcWeb Services Coordinate Systems Coordinate Systems Database Connections Add OLE DB Connection Add Spatial Database Connection Connection to gim-oracle.tti.servers.sde Database Servers GIS Servers Search Results Toolboxes 	Contents Preview Metadata Name • SDE.TX_CITY • SDE.TX_CTRL_SECT_2002 • SDE.TX_CTRL_SECT_2005 • SDE.TX_CTRL_SECT_2005 • SDE.TX_OTHER • SDE.TX_PARK • * SDE.TX_PARK * SDE.TX_RAILROAD • SDE.TX_ROUTE_2002 * SDE.TX_ROUTE_2002 * SDE.TX_ROUTE_2005 * SDE.TX_STRAT_MAP * SDE.TX_OT_DISTRICT * SDE.TXDOT_COUNTY SDE.TXDOT_SEGMENT * SDE.UTIL_CNFLT_OUTLN SDE.UTIL_CNFLT_OUTLN * SDE.UTIL_CNFLT_OUTLN_TEST * SDE.Vertex
1	

Figure 88. New Feature Class in Database Connection Window.

- The feature class Utility_Conflict_Outline will be used by the ArcMap document, which in turn ArcGIS Server map service uses to display outlines of utility conflicts.
- This completes the configuration of ArcSDE.

CHAPTER 4. COPYING DATA AND VERIFICATION OF UACT SETUP

INTRODUCTION

This chapter describes the steps to copy data to the Oracle database. The dataset includes seed data and utility installation request data from the TTI UACT prototype implementation. This chapter provides guidance for the following activities:

- configuration of the Oracle database and
- copying of UACT data to the Oracle database.

CONFIGURATION OF THE ORACLE DATABASE

Use the following procedure to configure the Oracle database, which involves creating an Oracle tablespace and an Oracle user account for UACT.

Create a Tablespace for UACT on the Oracle Server

- On the Oracle Server, click "Administration" menu (Figure 89).
- Under *Storage* column, click *Tablespaces* then click on "Create" button on the far right.

🗿 Oracle Enterprise Manager (SYS) - Database Instance: oragim - Microsoft Internet Explorer				
Eile Edit View Favorites Iools Help				
🔇 Back 🔹 🕥 🖌 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 🧙 Favorites 🤣 😥 👟 📓 🛀 📴 🎉 🍇				
Address 👰 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/em/console/c	latabase/instance/sitemap?event=doLoad⌖=ora	agim&type=oracle_database&pa 💌 🔁 Go 🛛 Links	»	
ORACLE Enterprise Manager 10g		Setup Preferences Help Logout Database	~	
		Logged in As SYS		
Database Instance: oragim				
Home Performance Administration Mainte	nance			
The Administration tab di splays links that allow yo database. The Maintenance tab displays links that Database Administration	u to administer database objects and initiate provide functions that control the flow of data	database operations inside an Oracle between or outside Oracle databases.	111	
Storage	Database Configuration	Database Scheduler		
Tablespaces Tablespaces Datafiles Rollback Segments Redo Log Groups Archive Logs	<u>Memory Parameters</u> <u>Undo Management</u> All Initialization Parameters Database Feature Usage	Jobs Chains Schedules Programs Job Classes Windows Window Groups Global Attributes		
Statistics Management	Change Database	Resource Manager		
Automatic Workload Repository Manage Optimizer Statistics	<u>Migrate to ASM</u> Make Tablespace Locally Managed	<u>Monitors</u> Consumer Groups Consumer Group Mappings Plans		
Policies				
<u>Policy Library</u> Policy Violations				
Schema				
Database Objects	Programs	XML Database		
Tables	Packages	Configuration	~	

Figure 89. Oracle Enterprise Manager Screen: Administration Tab.

- The Create Tablespace window appears (Figure 90).
- Enter "UACT" for Name.
- Click on "Add" button to add datafile (Figure 90).

🗿 Oracle Enterprise Manager - Create Tablespace - Microsoft Internet Explorer							
Eile Edit View Favorites Iools Help							
🔇 Back 🔹 🌍 👻 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🤣 🔗 - 😓 🔟 - 📴 🎇 🥸							
Address 🖉 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/	Address 🕘 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/em/console/database/storage/tablespace?event=create&cancelURL=/em/console/database/databaseObjectsSearch%3Fevent%3Dredit ⊻ 🎅 Go 🛛 Links 🎽						
		Show SQL Cancel OK					
General Storage							
* Name UACT							
Extent Management	Туре	Status					
 Locally Managed 	Permanent	Read Write					
ODictionary Managed	Set as default permanent tablespace	◯ Read Only					
	Temporary	Offline					
	Set as default temporary tablespace						
	🔘 Undo						
	Undo Retention Guarantee 🔵 Yes 💿 No						
Datafiles							
Use bigfile tablespace	no westical size limit						
Tablespace can have only one datable with	no practical size init.	Add					
Select Name	Directory	Siz e (MB)					
No items found							
General Storage							
1							
Database Setup Preferences Help Logout							
About Oracle Enterprise Manager 10g Database	Control						
ê .		🔮 Internet					

Figure 90. Oracle Create Tablespace Window.

- The Add Datafile window opens (Figure 91).
- Click a "Continue" button.

🗿 Oracle Enterprise Manager - Add Datafile - Microsoft Internet Explorer	- 7
Eile Edit View Favorites Iools Help	A.
🚱 Back 👻 🔊 - 💌 😰 🚮 🔎 Search 📌 Favorites 🤣 🔗 - چ 🕋 - 🗔 🏭 🔏	
Address 🚳 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/em/console/database/storage/tablespace?target=oragim&type=oracle_database&cancelURL=/em/consol	le/database/databaseObjectsSe 🔽 🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🎽
ORACLE Enterprise Manager 10g	Setup Preferences Help Logout Database
Database Instance: oragim > <u>Tablespaces</u> > Add Datafile	Logged in As SYS
Add Datafile	
	Cancel
* File Name UACT_DATAFILE.DBF	
* File Directory D:\ORACLE_DATA_FILE\ORAGIM\	
Tablespace UACT	
File Size 100 MB 💌	
Reuse Existing File	
Storage	
Automatically extend datafile when full (AUTOEXTEND)	
Increment 10 MB 💌	
Maximum File Size 🔿 Unlimited	
© Value ² GB ▼	
	Concel Continue
	Cancel
Database Setup Preterences Help Logout Copyright © 1996, 2005, Oracle. All rights reserved.	
About Oracle Enterprise Manager 10g Database Control	
j Ø Done	🔮 Internet

Figure 91. Oracle Enterprise Manager: Add Datafile to Tablespace.

• On the Create Tablespace page, click the "OK" button on the bottom right of the screen (Figure 92).

🚰 Oracle Enterprise Manager - Create	Tablespace - Microsoft Internet Explorer		
<u>File Edit View Favorites Tools Help</u>			A.
🌀 Back 🝷 🕥 🕤 🛃 🛃 🏑	🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🥝 🔗 🍓 🕋 📒 🎉	23	
Address 🖉 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/	em/console/database/storage/tablespace?target=oragim&type=oracle_data	base&cancelURL=/em/console/database/d	atabaseObjectsSe 💙 ラ Go 🛛 Links 🤅
Database Instance: oragim > Tablespa	i <u>ces</u> > Create Tablespace		Logged in As SYS 🔮
Create Tablespace			
		(Show SQL Cancel OK
General Storage			
* Nama UACT			
* Name UACT			
Extent Management		Status	
Ocally Manaαed	 Permanent 	Read Write	
O Dictionary Managed	Set as default normanent tablesnape	○ Read Onlγ	
, ,		◯ Offline	
	O Temporary		
	🔲 Set as default temporary tablespace		
	🔿 Undo		
	Undo Retention Guarantee 🔘 Yes 💿 No		
Datafiles			
🔲 Use bigfile tablespace			
Tablespace can have only one datafile with	no practical size limit.		Add
			Edit Remove
Select Name	Directory		Size (MB)
UACT_DATAFILE.DBF	D:\ORACLE_DATA_FILE\ORAGIM\		100.00
General Storage			
		(8	now SQL) Cancel) OK)
😂 Done			🥶 Internet

Figure 92. Oracle Create Tablespace Window with New Tablespace.

• To create user accounts for UACT in Oracle, select *Users* in the *Users and Privileges* group (Figure 93).

🗿 Oracle Enterprise Manager (SYS) - Database	Instance: oragim - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		AL
🚱 Back 🝷 🐑 💌 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search	📌 Favorites 🚱 🔗 - 嫨 📝 - 🗾 🕯	🖞 🚳
ddress 🖉 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/em/console/	database/instance/sitemap?event=doLoad⌖=oragim&t	ype=oracle_database&pageNum=3 🛛 💽 Go Links
Database Objects	Programs	XML Database
Tables Indexes Synonyms Sequences Database Links Directory Objects Reorganize Objects	Packages Package Bodies Procedures Functions Triggers Java Classes Java Sources	Configuration Resources Access Control Lists XML Schemas XMLType Tables XMLType Views
Users & Privileges	Materialized Views Materialized Views Materialized View Logs	BI & OLAP Dimensions Cubes
Profiles Audit Settings	Refresh Groups	OLAP Dimensions Measure Folders
Array Types Object Types Table Types		
Enterprise Manager Administration		
Administrators	Notification Schedule	<u>Blackouts</u>
TIP Use the Enterprise Manager 10g Java Con <u>Home</u> <u>Performance</u> Administration Mainte	sole to manage Advanced Replication and Workspa enance	ce.
Related Links		
Advisor Central All Metrics Jobs Metric Collection Errors SQL History	Alert History Blackouts Manage Metrics Monitoring Configuration User-Defined Metrics	Alert Log Content iSQL*Plus Metric Baselines Monitor in Memory Access Mode
à		Internet

Figure 93. Oracle Administration Window.

- In the Create User window, click the "Create" button and enter information for the UACT_USER account, as shown in Figure 94.
- Make sure to select UACT as the default tablespace for the UACT_USER account.
- Click the "Roles" menu, then click on "Edit List" button (Figure 94).

Oracle Enterprise Manager - Create User - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Elle Edit View Favorites Tools Help	an a
🔾 Back 🔹 💿 🕤 🛋 🙆 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🤣 🖾 - چ 🕍 🔚 🖓 🛄 🎎	
Address 🙋 http://gim-oracle.tti.servers:1158/em/console/database/security/user?event=create&cancelURL=/em/console/database/databaseObjectsSearc	:h%3Fevent%3Dredisplay% 💙 🛃 Go 🛛 Links 🎽
ORACLE: Enterprise Manager 10g Database Control	Setup Preferences Help Logout Database
Database Instance: oragim > Users > Create User	Logged in As SYS
Create User	
	Show SQL Cancel OK
General Roles System Privileges Object Privileges Quotas Consumer Groups Switching Privileges Proxy Users	
* Name UACT USER	
Authentication Password V	
* Enter Password	
* Confirm Password	
For Password choice, the role is authorized via password.	
Expire Password now	
Default Tablespace UACT	
Temporary Tablespace TEMP	
Status OLocked OUnlocked	
General Roles System Privileges Object Privileges Quotas Consumer Groups Switching Privileges Proxy Users	
	Show SQL Cancel OK
Database Setup Preferences Help Logout Copyright © 1996, 2005, Oracle. All rights reserved. About Oracle Enterprise Manager 10g Database Control About Oracle Enterprise Manager 10g Database Control	
	🔮 Internet

Figure 94. Oracle Create User Window.

- From the list of available roles, select *Resources* and then click "Move" (Figure 95).
- Make sure that *Connect* is also listed under *Selected Roles*.
- Click "OK," then click "OK" again.



Figure 95. Oracle Modify Roles Window.

• Repeat the previous steps to create additional tablespaces and user accounts as shown in Table 1:

Tablespace Name	User Account	Minimum Tablespace Size	Datafile Name
FileNet	FileNet_User	20 MB	FileNet_Data.dbf
MainStreet	MainStreet_User	20 MB	MainStreet_Data.dbf
ROWIS	Rowis_User	20 MB	Rowis_Data.dbf
SDE	Sde	20 MB	SDE_Data.dbf
UACT	UACT_Owner	100 MB	Uact_Data.dbf
UFD	UFD_User	30 MB	UFD_Data.dbf
UIRPRO	UIRPRO_User	200 MB	UIRPRO_Data.dbf
DCIS	DCIS_User	20 MB	DCIS_Data.dbf

 Table 1. UACT Tablespace Size Requirements.

COPYING UACT DATA TO THE ORACLE DATABASE

The installation DVD contains the following Oracle export files:

- Uactdev_owner_8_5_2008.dmp. This file contains the UACT schema including most database objects such as tables, views, functions, synonyms, and data. Import this schema from UACTDev_owner to UACT_Owner.
- **Uactdev_user_8_5_2008.dmp**. This file contains synonyms of database objects in the schema listed above. The synonyms allow the web application to use resources in other schemas. Import this schema from UACTDev_user to UACT_USER.
- FileNet_user_8_31_2008.dmp. This file contains the FileNet_User schema.
- **MainStreet_8_5_2008.dmp**. This file contains the MAINSTREET schema including core tables of the MainStreet Texas implementation.
- **Rowis_user_8_31_2008.dmp.** This file contains the Rowis_User schema.
- **Sde_8_31_2008.dmp.** This file contains the SDE schema.
- UFD_user_8_5_2008.dmp. This file contains the UFD schema including the database objects and data of spatial utility features.

- **uir20071227.zip**. This file contains the UIRPRO schema. Unzip it before importing the schema.
- **DCIS_8_5_2008.dmp**. This file contains the DCIS schema including the DCIS DATA WAREHOUSE table and sample DCIS data.

After creating all tablespaces and user accounts listed above, import data from the dump files to the Oracle database. It is advisable to copy the whole content of UACT DVD to a local hard drive of the Oracle database server before proceeding.

- Open a command prompt by going to *Start* > *Run* > and typing "cmd."
- Navigate to the folder *D*:*Data*.
- Import file Uactdev_owner_8_5_2008.dmp using the following option (Figure 96):

FromUser=UactDev_Owner ToUser=Uact_Owner



Figure 96. Command for Importing Dump File Uactdev_Owner.

• Import file uactdev_user_8_5_2008.dmp using the following option (Figure 97):

FromUser=UactDev_User ToUser=Uact_User



Figure 97. Command for Importing Dump File Uactdev_User.

• Import FileNet_user_8_31_2008.dmp files without options (Figure 98).



Figure 98. Command for Importing Dump File FileNet_User.

• Repeat the above steps to import data for all other schemas without options.

CHAPTER 5. UACT INSTALLATION TESTING AND PERFORMANCE

UACT INSTALLATION TESTING

Use the following brief procedure to verify that UACT is working properly (refer to the UACT User Manual for more help on each step):

- Open a new Internet Explorer window, preferably on a different machine than the web server where UACT resides. Type in the URL address for UACT.
- Login to UACT using one of the existing dummy accounts to login (username and password provided separately).
- Create a new project by importing dummy DCIS data.
- Click on the new project in the home screen to log into the new project.
- Import a few utility facilities using dummy UFD data.
- Create a new utility conflict. Creating utility conflicts requires several steps that the user manual describes in detail. Refer to the user manual for more information on how to create utility conflicts (7).
- After the utility conflict is complete, edit the utility conflict outline using the mapping component.
- Create a new utility agreement assembly for the utility conflict created previously. Creating utility agreement assemblies requires several steps that the user manual describes in detail. Refer to the user manual for more information on how to create utility agreement assemblies (7).
- Create additional utility conflicts, and change the status of each conflict under the edit utility conflict option.
- Go to the reports page to verify that the report "create utility conflict certification" is working.

The previous steps presented a brief and quick procedure to verify that the UACT installation is successful. Before UACT becomes fully operational, the researchers recommend testing the prototype during an implementation project with one or more testing districts.

REFERENCES

- Kraus, E., Quiroga, C., Koncz, N., and Dawood, H. Development of a Utility Conflict Management System. Under Review. Publication FHWA/TX-08/0-5475-4. Texas Department of Transportation, Austin, Texas, 2008.
- Quiroga, C., Kraus, E., and Hamad, K. Inventory of Utilities Data Collection and Processing. Draft. Publication FHWA/TX-06/5-2110-01-3. Texas Department of Transportation, Austin, Texas, 2006.
- 3. *Oracle 9i Client Installation Guide (Release 9.0.1.1.1).* Oracle Corporation, Redwood Shores, California, June 2001.
- 4. Oracle Enterprise Manager Configuration Guide (Release 9.0.1). Oracle Corporation, Redwood Shores, California, June 2001.
- 5. AutoVue Desktop Edition Installation and Administration Manual. Oracle Corporation, Redwood Shores, California, n.d.
- 6. Express User Guide Version 3.8. Adlib Software, Burlington, Ontario, Canada, 2007.
- Kraus, E., and Dawood, H. Utility Accommodation and Conflict Tracker (UACT) User Manual. Under Review. Report No. FHWA/TX-08/0-5475-R3. Texas Department of Transportation, Austin, Texas, 2008.